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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Strategic Report

The Directors present their strategic report for Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019

Principal activity

The Group's principal actiwity during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom,
although the Group has diversified into out-of-home media advertising dunng the year

Business review

This business review gives greater emphasis to those matters which are significant to Global Media &
Entertainment Limited and its subsidiary undertakings (1 e the Group) when viewed as a whole

The Group’'s revenue has grown for the tenth consecutive year, 24% up on prior year, organically and through
acqussitions. This has been supported by increased engagement with the Global portfolio of brands, bath through
innovative content for consumers and through creative partnering with clients Total hours have increased 1 7%
year on year, with listeners engaging with 233.1m hours of radic content in this financial year', as well as the
Group’s strongest performance to date from content sotutions partnerships

Commercial revenue has continued to outperform the market in revenue terms, increasing by 7% against market
growth of 2%

Giobal's Digital Audia Exchange (DAX) remains the world's targest digital audio advertising pfatform and 1s a key
player in the programmatic advertising arena, with a growing number of publishers selling their inventory through
DAX In the UK alore, the number of publishers has almost tripled year on year to 44 (2018: 16) The market
remains dynamic and adverhsers are increasingly directing greater levels of spend towards tools and channels
which allow more targeted and transparent campaigns The Group further extended its reach intc North America
through the acquisition of Leanstream Inc. in Canada

Digital engagement with Global's brands has grown year on year, with average monthly unique engagements up
30% in 2018-19. The Group has also continued to invest in the Global Player, improving functionality through
sustained technological innovation, while growing the user base

This year has seen Global continue to diversify its revenue streams beyond traditicnal airtime, making a series of
acquisttions i the out-of-home sector, purchasing Qutdoor Plus, Primesight and Exterion. Global will be able to
reach more consumers than ever before and generate significant synergies through the integration of these
businesses

The Group's adjusted EBITDA? of £117 2m increased by 13% on the prior year figure of £104 Om  Adjusted EBITDA
margin dropped slightly from 27% to 24%, generating a statutory loss of £32 7m compared to the prior year profit
of £19 7m, largely due to increased digital investment, costs of entenng the out-of-home advertising market and
the impact of refinancing within the Group

In October 2018, Ofcom amended the regulations around local programming to ensure that radio broadcasting was
able o remain compettive armdst changing hstener habits and an increasingly digitised landscape Global
responded by iaunching nationwide breakfast shows across Capital and Heart, and announcing a nationai drivetime
show on Smooth The changes will aliow the Group to offer frue national competition to the breakfast shows across
BDC Radio 1 and Radio 2

Now In its second year, the prestigious Giobal Awards brought together all of Global's radio stations, including
Capital, Heart, Smooth, Classic FM, LBC, Radic X, Capital XTRA and Gold, with award categories reflecting the
music, programmes and news aired throughout the year Global has continued to host world-class live music, from
small-scale gigs with Radio X and Heart, to Capital's long-established stadium events, securing internationally-
rehowned talent across the brand portfolio

At the end of the financial year, the Group sought to dispose of its interests In music festivals to allow the Group to
focus on the opporlunilies offered by the new Outdoor divisicn. The Group has recorded an impairment to goodwill
and brand vaiues during the year (note 10) The transactions occurred after the reporting date, with the majonty
completed at the date of signing

Global's Make Some Noise, the Group’s chanty, continued to raise money for disadvantaged children and young
people and to give a voice to smaller chanties that find it hard to get heard Global's Make Some Noise raised aver
£4 5m (2018. £3.7m) in the year, awarding grants to 31 chanties and projects across the UK Since its launch in

' RAJAR website
? Radiacentre website
* As defined in the appendix to the accounts



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Strategic Report (continued)

2014, Global's Make Some Noise has raised more than £15 million for 224 chantes around the UK, helping more
than 73,000 children and young people

Glebai continues te sponsor the Global Academy, a university technical college in Hayes, Middlesex, which opened
in 2016 and provides academic and vocational education for students who want to work in the broadcast and digital
media industry

In December 2018, the Group undertook refinancing of its external banking facilities, entering new term loans for
£350 Om, and completed a restructuring of sharehotder debt No shares were 1ssued or converted during the year

Financial performance

The consolidated income statement 18 set out on page 20 and shows revenue for the year ended 31 March 2019
of £480 Om, an increase of 24% on last year’s figure of £388 Om Operating profit of £42 3m decreased by £40.8m
compared to ast year's figure of £83 1m Operating profit I1s stated after charging depreciation of £11 5m (2018
£4 4m) and amortisation of £25 1m (2018 £19 4m) The loss before taxation of £19 4m (2018 profit of £25 1m) s
largely due to revenue growth offset by deal-related costs, non-recurring stems, mpairment of assets and increased
finance charges as a result of the debt restructuring

The Directors consider that adjusted EBITDA {as defined in the appendix to the Group Financial Statements)
represents a key measure of the business performance as it demonstrates the underlying trading by excluding the
effects of non-recurnng items The results for the year set out below show growth of £13 2m (13%) 1n adjusted
EBITDA from £104 Om in 2018 to £117 2m for the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£m £m

Radio 358.4 3295
QOutdoor (note 1) 52.0 -
Music festivals 69.6 585
Total revenue 480.0 3880
Direct costs {166.2) {107 2)
Gross profit 313.8 2808

Other operating costs (note 2) (196.6) (176 8)
Adjusted EBITDA (appendix) 117.2 104 ¢

Note 1 Qutdoor comprises Outdoor Plus and Primesight consolidated from the dates of acquisition, and excludes
Exterion

Note 2 Other operating costs represent administrative expenses and exclude depreciation, amortisation ang
impairment, as well as charges or credits relating to non-recurring items, which include restructuring and integration
costs, such as launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and vacant property provisions Costs
associated with acquisitions are also excluded This I1s consistent with prior year

As defined n the appendix o the accounts, adjusted EBITDA comprises earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation and 15 stated before any charges or credits relating to non-recurnng items including restructunng
and integration costs, such as launch costs including rebranding, redundancy costs and vacant property provisions,
as well as costs of acquisition This classification is consistent with prior year

Going concern

At 31 March 2019 the Group had net labilites of £368 6m (2018 £331 7m) The Directors confirm that, after making
enquiries, they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources and the support of the
hoiders of the related party loans, principally owed to owner-shareholders, to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In prepanng
these financial statements Further information around the assessment of going concern car be found in note 1 of
the financial statements

Future developments

The Directors believe that the year ended 31 March 2019 reflected a return to the Radio operating segment's typical
trading levels after the prior year's exceptional results The Group expects moderate but stable growth across its
commercial radio and out-of-home advertising operations in the short and medwm term, although the wider market
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Group Strategic Report (continued)

outlock remains uncertain  The Directors continue to explore a number of opportunities to grow and expand the
existing business

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principai risks faced by the business can be divided into operational, comrmercial, financiai, credit and liquidity
risks The risks are monitored and managed at a Group level and by local mznagement teams.

Operational risk

Audience levels at the Group’s stations could erode the Group's position, both in local markets and in the national
marketplace, if they were to decline To address this, the Group markets its radio brands regutarly and continuatly
strives to improve programming standards to increase audiences, nvesting i the best on-air talent in order te
create high-quality content  The Group carries out research on its listeners, bullding profiles of their likes and
dishkes, and uses this to develop both the sound of the stations, and the music they play

The Group has tred to mitigate these risks by extending its presence in the digital advertising market with further
investment in its DAX proposition, including internaticnal expansion, and by diversifying into out-of-home medsa, in
order tc extend its impact across a wider consumer base

Commercial risk

There 1s a nsk that weakness in the advertising market could put pressure on traditional revenue streams To
address this, the Group has been developing ts relationship with advertisers and agencies to ensure that the value
of its brands s fully realised This includes offering tallored solutions to advertisers and highlighting the breadth of
the Group’s products, which was enhanced with the creation of the new Outdoor division The development of new
media opportunities 1s at the heart of the Group's strategy, which wili continue to reduce the pressure on traditional
revenue generators

While the impact of the United Kingdom leaving the European Union remains uncertain and hard to assess, based
on current UK growth forecasts there 1s a risk that revenues will be lower than forecast in the comung years In
additian, there are other related factors which affect the Group, for example, the mpact of a tougher UK business
environment on interest rates and therefore long-term bond yields and the Group pension liabilities, or changes in
foreign exchange rates, as the Group expands internationally and increases trading in other currencies

The Group has analysed the potential impact on the business of a financial downturn through detaded scenano
modelling and assessments of performance during historic economic recessions In a downside scenarno, the
Group would implement vanous cost reduction strategies in order to preserve margin performance and no breach
of financial covenants would be expected as a result

Financial risk

The Group is pnmarily funded by both related party and bank debt Bank debt increased in the year after the
refinancing in December 2018 The Group's operations are cash-generative, and general exposure to liquidity risk
15 considered to be low. The Group momitors performance against its banking covenants on a guarterly basis

Credit risk

The Group actively mitigates the nsk of payment default by its customers using trade credit insurance and by
regularly reviewing outstanding payments and provisions for payment defauit
Liquidity risk

To maintaun iquidity and ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operaticns and future developments,
the Company uses long-term debt finarice  The Group has not significantly altered its working ¢apital management
strategies during the year and 1s not subject to any externally-imposed requirement in this regard.

Key performance indicators

The bustness uses key performance indicators which are monitored on a regular basis and include audience trends
such as weekly reach, listering hours, share of the market and demographic mix as well as financial indicators
such as revenue, adjusted EBITDA and operating margins. Variance analysis is performed monthly, the results of
which are monitored and discussed within a formal meeting structure.

This report was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

O S

D D. Singer
Director
26 July 2019



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Directors’ Report

The Directors present the Directors’ report and the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019

Results and dividends

The loss for the year after taxation amounted to £32 7m (2018 profit of £19 7m) The Directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend (2018 £nil)

Directors
The Directors who served during the year and to the date of this report were

Lord Allen of Kensington CBE (Chairman)
A D Tabor OBE

S G. Miron

RF J Park

M Gordon

W Harding

I L Hanson

D D. Singer

Political and charitable contributions

The Group 1s involved with several charities linked to its radio operations and, duning the course of the financial year,
the Group’s chanties were involved 1n fundraising activities which generated £4 5m (2018. £3 7m) as part of Global's
Make Some Noise The Group's chanties also recewved funding of £0 4m (2018 £1.5m) for the Big Music Project,
which has been fully funded by grants from The National Lottery Communrty Fund, previgusly know as the Big Lottery
Fund, as in the pnor year

As well as providing radio airime and outdeor inventory to promote the activities and events of its charittes, the Group
provides a number of services to these chanties, including the use of offices and administration services, free of
charge

The Group's donations to charnties amounted to £0 2m (2018 £02m) No contnbutions were made to political
orgamisations

Future developments

The Directors believe that the level of activity wilt remain at current levels of growth for the foreseeable future The
Directors continue to explore several opportunities to grow and expand the existing business

Financial instruments

The Group’s risk management process and the policies for mitigating certain type of nsks are set out in note 20
Details of the financtal instruments used for these purposes are in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

Non-financial key performance indicators

The Directors regularly assess the performance of the Group with a number of financial indicators, though the main
non-financial measures are audience figures, as recorded in RAJAR surveys, and outdoor advertising reach, as
measured by Route, a joint industry body producing estimates for out-of-home advertising These figures are used
commercialty, In terms of determining campaign value, but also as a guide as to how each brand, location and format
is performing  Both RAJAR results and Route data are based on statistical calculations based on surveys completed
by members of the public, and are published quarterly

Employee involvement

The Group places considerabie value on the involvement of its people and has continued to keep them informed on
matters affecting their employment and on a range of factors affecting the performance of the Group and the
Company This 1s achieved through formal and informal meetings, including regular panel interviews with Board
members and presenters, such as James O'Brien and recently Tom Swarbrick, across the Group’s broadcast centres
Employee representatives are consulted regularly on a wide range of matters affecting thew current and future
interests, with the majonty of the workforce engaged in shaping the Group's refreshed culture and wellbeing policies

Climate change

The Group takes its environmental stewardship seriously, acknowledging its impact at its own sites and from staff
travel Global's transmitters are powered 99% from renewable energy sources through the Group’s third party
transmissions provider, and all offices use sustainable sources of energy  Global continues o pursue a policy of
reducing and recycling waste across its broadcast centres, and has committed to eliminating single-use plastics
backstage at events and throughout offices by December 2019

While climate change 1s not seen as a significant nsk to the group, Global’s belief 1s that everyone has a responsibility
to reduce therr own impact, and the areas outlined above are the first steps in that direction
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Group Directors’ Report (continued)

Social matters and human rights

Global impacts the social fabric of the Umited Kingdom both through its programming and events it provides to its
audiences, and also through how It operates as an organisation As an employer, Global seeks to create a socially
diverse environment where indhiduals are able to thnive regardless of ethnicity, gender, age, disability or sexuality,
and upholds a fairness policy addressing equal opportunities and diversity throughout the Group's operations

The Group 1s fully committed to ensuring it does not participate in, or facilitate, the violation of human nghts. Its
Modern Slavery Act Statement addresses how the Group identifies, addresses and prevents maodern slavery in its
business and wider supply chain This statement 1s available on the company website and Is reviewed annually

Global has also published Privacy and Data Protection policies, as well as an Information Security policy, detailing
how It manages and stores individuals' information whether they are employed by, or providing information to, the
Group.

Global interacts with a large number of individuals dunng the ordinary course of its operations and as such, has a
safeguarding policy in place for dealing with children or vulnerable adults to ensure their safety while they are with
us

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

All of the Group’s employees are required to read and to acknowledge the policy on anti-corruption and bnbery The
implications of not following the policy are set out in the guide issued and availabte to all staff

Disabied employeas

Applications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considered, beanng in mind the abiities of the
applicant concerned As a people-focussed business, we make sure that we recruit the nght person for the job every
time, whatever their background

In the event of a member of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that appropriate adjustments are made. it1s the policy of the Group and the Company that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The Directors benefit from qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place  The Group also prowvided qualifying
third-party indemnity provisions to certain Directors of associated companies during the financial year

Matters covered in the strategic report

Details of the principal nsks faced by the Group, including operational, commercial, finangial, credit and hquidity risks,
are discussed In the Group Strategic Report

Provision of informatfon to the auditor

Each of the persons who are Directors at the time when this Directors' Report is approved has confirmed that

+ s0 far as that each Director Is aware, there i1s no relevant audit information of which the Group and the Company's
auditor is unaware, and

« that each Director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director in arder to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and the Company's auditor is aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Auditor

Under sechon 487(2) of the Campanies Act 2006, Delotte LLP will be deemed to have been reappointed as auditor
28 days after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latest date prescribed for filing
the accounts with the registrar, whichever i1s eartier

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

O' M

O D. Singe
Director
26 July 2019



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the parent company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” Under company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period

In preparnng the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentiy,
. make Judgements and accounting estmates that are reasonable and prudent,
) state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue In business

In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

. properly select and apply accounting policies,

. present information, including accounting policies, 1n a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in {FRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particuiar transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s fimancial position and financial performance, and

. make an assessment of the company's akility to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positton of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financral statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

=« the financial statements of Global Media & Entertainment Limited (the ‘parent
company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of
the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

s the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union;

« the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”;
and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
e the Group income statement;
» the Group statement of comprehensive income;
« the Group statement of financial position and parent company balance sheet;
« the Group and parent company statements of changes in equity;
= the Group statement of cash flows; and
+« the related notes 1 to 38.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial
statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements
1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK})
and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s
respaonsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

10



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment

Limited (continued)

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters

Materiality

Scoping

Significant
changes in our
approach

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

« Completeness of Airtime revenue;

+« Valuation of related party loans; and

« Qutdoor plus and Primesight IFRS 3 acquisition accounting
judgements.

The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £6.0m
which was determined using 5% of annualised adjusted EBITDA,
representing a full year's results of Outdoor Plus and Primesight and
excluding Festivals.

Qur Group audit was split into three separate components:

« Commercial radio broadcasting ("Radio™);
» Music festivals (“Festivals”); and
* Qutdoor Plus and Primesight ("Outdoor”).

We performed a full scope audit In respect of Radio and specified audit
procedures over select account balances for Festivals and Qutdoor with a
collective representation of 100% of the Group’s revenue and 100% of the
adjusted EBITDA.

Qur FY19 report includes one new key audit matter being the IFRS 3
acquisition accounting judgements in retation to the Qutdoor plus and
Primesight acquisitions.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of the following We have nothing to report

matters where:

the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in

in respect of these
matters.

preparation of the financial statements I1s not appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast signmficant doubt
about the Group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are

authorised for I1ssue.

11
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment

Limited (continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These
matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team:.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

The most significant change in the current year is in respect to the acquisition of Qutdocr Plus and
Primesight, we have included this as a key audit matter below.

Completeness of Airtime revenues

Key audit matter
description

©

Alrtime revenues totalled £194.7m in FY19 accounting for 41% of the
Group’s revenue. Airtime revenues are generated via placement of customer
advertisements on the Group’s radio netwaorks; whereby advertisements are
allocated to pre-determined slots, with the corresponding revenue
recognised at the point at which the associated advertisement is broadcast.

Billing and revenue recognition processes are highly automated and
dependent on the operating effectiveness of certain key IT controls and the
interfacing capability of the Group’s IT and finance systems. Accordingly,
we consider the compieteness of Airtime revenues recognised in the year
ending 31 March 2019 to represent a key audit matter on account of the
reliance placed on the interaction between systems and the quantitative
significance of Airime revenues recorded (see accounting policy note bb).

How the scope of
our audit

responded to the
key audit matter

» Gained an understanding of the control environment in place, specifically

We perfoermed the following audit procedures to assess the completeness of
Airtime revenues:

the processes and controls deployed to mitigate the risk of material
misstatement;

Assessed the design and implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of relevant automated and manual controls surrounding the
Group’s revenue recognition processes, specifically the reconciliations
performed between scheduling, play out and billing systems;

Engaged our internal IT specialists to assess the Group’s general IT controls
pertaining to key systems to include review interfacing and flow of
information, report logic, change management and data export and import
processes; and .

Agreed a sample of advertisements from the lst of live broadcasts
throughout the year to the Group’s scheduling and finance systems.

Key observations

We did not identify any matenal misstatements in the course of our work.
Accordingly we are satisfied as to the completeness of Airtime revenues
recoghised in the year.

12



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Valuation of reiated party loans

Key audit matter The Group is funded in part through related party loans in the form of

description shareholder and senior term loan notes and loans from its parent and
connected parties (collectively “the loans”}. As at 31 March 2019 related
party loans amounted to a fair value of £1,251m (FY18 £649.6m), the
significant increase was owing to the lgans received from related parties in

order to fund the Group’s acquisition of Outdoor Plus, Primesight and the
investment in Exterion. See borrowings accounting policy note iu and
critical accounting judgement note 1i.

As set out in note 16 to the Financial Statements, the loans are individually
extended at below (0%) around (7% + Libor)} and above {10.5% + Libor)
market rates of interest. In line with the requirements of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, management is required to make an assumption as to the
market rate of interest applicable n determining the fair value of related
party loans. Management have determined a market rate of interest to be
7.9%. Owing to the guantitative significance of the loans, the applicable
interest rate is considered highly sensitive whereby a marginal change could
result in @ material change in the fair value of borrowings recognised.

How the scope of We performed the following audit procedures to assess the vaiuation of
our audit related party loans recognised:
responded to the

key audit matter » Gained an understanding of the control environment in place, specifically

the processes and controls deployed to mitigate the risk of maternal

misstatement;
Assessed the design and implementation of relevant controls in respect of

management’s judgements and calculations;

Challenged management’s assessment of the changes to the loans and
whether these were meodifications or extinguishments;

Challenged the reasonableness of the interest rate applied by management
through review of equivalent rates applied by comparable companies in the
sector and calculating our own independent, interest rate;

Challenged and assessed the mechanical accuracy of management’s
sensitivity analysis and reviewed the required disclosures;

Assessed the integrity of key inputs and the mechanical accuracy of
management’s fair value calculation through recalculation; and

Obtained copies of supporting agreements to validate keys terms of the
loans and any extensions.

Key observations We did not identify any materiat misstatements in the course of our work.
Accordingly we are satisfied as to the valuation of the reiated party loans.

We considered the disclosure in accounting policy note 11 showing
management’s sensitivity of the discount rate was appropriate.

Outdoor plus and Primesight IFRS 3 acquisition accounting judgements

Key audit matter As described in Note 24, during the vyear, the Group completed the

description acquisition of Outdoor plus and Primesight (together “Qutdoor”). The
transactions have been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 'Business
Combinations’. £149.3m of goodwill has been recognised, In addition to
£5.6m of net liabilities, of which £179.9m represents right-of-use assets.

13
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

—

We have identified a key audit matter in relation to the completeness and
valuation of separately identifiable assets recognised upon acquisition due
to the judgement required in this assessment. See business combinations
accounting policy note 24 and critical accounting judgement note 1.

Management’s calculation of the price allocation valuation in respect of the
Qutdoor tangible fixed assets is provisional as at 31 March 2019 and this
has been drsclosed within note 24 of the Financial Statements.

h

How the scope of We performed the following audit procedures to gain comfort over
our audit management’'s assessment of the acquisition balance sheets:
responded to the

key audit matter » Gained an understanding of the control environment in place, specifically

the processes and controls depioyed to mitigate the risk of material
misstatement, and tested management’s implementation of this;
‘ » Performed specified audit procedures on the underlying net liability position;
» Challenged revenue growth and profit margin assumptions considering
historical accuracy of budgeting and benchmark data;
» Engaged our valuation specialists in order to assess the reasonableness of
intangible assets identified and IFRS 3 valuation adjustments;

» Tested the valuation input data to board approved forecasted data; and
» Assessed management’s workings on Goodwill impairment as at the year

end.
Key observations
We considered that management’s judgement on the wvaluation of
acquisition net assets is appropriate and 1s this approach is permitted under
IFRS 3.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited {(continued)

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of aur work,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a
whole as follows:

[

Group financial statements i Parent company financial
: statements

Materiality £6m (2018: £5m) £4.5m (2018: £4.9m)

Basis (1 Our determination of materiality is Parent company materiality equates to
LGOI T I reflective of our consideration of a 2% of company only net liabilities and
materiality range of possible outcomes using an is capped at 75% of Group materiality.
annualised adjusted EBITDA and a full

year's results of Outdoor Plus and

Primesight and excluding Festivals.

Materiality of £6.0m represents 5% of

this measure.

Rationale Adjusted EBITDA s considered to ' The parent company holds the Group's
for \UCN represent the single most important related party borrowings, these are the
benchmark key performance indicators of the only instruments of significance in the
applied Group and the area of interest of major parent only financial statements,
stakeholders.

Group materality £6m
Ad) EBITDA £117m Component

matenality range
£4 8mto £2 4m
m Ad) EBITDA

Reporting threshoid

u Group matenality 03
m

We agreed with the Board of Directors that we would report all audit differences in excess of £0.3m
(2018: £0.25m), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting
on gualitative grounds. We also report to the Board of Directors on disclosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Giobal Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Repoit to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group operates predominantly in the United Kingdom. The parent company and all subsidiaries
of the Group are centrally managed from the head office in London. Our audit was scoped by
obtaining an understanding of the Group and its cantrol envireanment, and assessing the risks of
material misstatement at the Group level. No component auditors were engaged as part of our
audit of the Group.

We consider that the Group comprises three key components;

. Radio: the Radio component is considered a financially significant component of the
Group representing 75% of the Group’s revenue and 89% of the Group’s adjusted
EBITDA. Accordingly, full scope audit procedures have been performed to 2 component
materiality of £4.8m.

. Festivals. Festival entities are individually immatenal to the Group with the aggregate
accounting for 14% of the Group’s revenue and 3% of the Group’s adjusted EBITDA.
Accordingly, certain specified audit procedures have been performed over selected
account balances using a component materiality of £2.4m.

. Outdoor: The acquired businesses Outdcor Plus and Primesight are not financially
significant to the Group with the aggregate accounting for 11% of the Group's revenue
and 8% of the Group’s adjusted EBITDA. Accordingly, certain specified audit
precedures have been performed using a component materality of £2.4m.

The components (dentified above are consistent with the reportable segments set out in note 2 to
the financial statements and have been selected based on their size in the context of the Group as
a whole.

Our audit work on these components, excluding the parent company, was executed at ievels of
materiality ranging between £2.4m and £4.8m which were lower than Group materiality of £6.0m.
* Our audit coverage with respect to Group revenue, adjusted EBITDA:

\ N

Adjusted

Revenue
EBITDA

u Full audit scope m Full zudit scope

m Specified audit procedures m Specifred audit procedures
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other We have nothing to report
information comprises the information included in the Group in respect of these
strategic and Group Directors’ report, other than the financial matters.

statements and our auditer’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such matenal inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a materal misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine I1s necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and
the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
ecocnomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on
the FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited {continued)

Report on other legal and regulatery requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the Group directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and

. the strategic report and the Group directors’ report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements
in the strategic report or the Group directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

SIS F, M exand o nts 200 L 2T 300 300U mD L annsds

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you We have nothing to report
if, 1n our opinion: in respect of these matters.

« we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent company financial statements are not n
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Directors remune 3t G

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if We have nothing to report
in gur cpinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have in respect of this matter.
not been made.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Global Media & Entertainment
Limited {continued)

Use of our report

This report is made soleiy to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

A docns t(w

Andrew Evans

FCA {Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Reading, UK

26 July 2019
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2019 March 2018
Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 4 480,045 388,009
Direct costs {166,256) {107,210)
Gross profit 313,789 280,799
Administrative expenses {271,447) {197,703)
Operating profit 3 42,342 83,096
Finance income 7 18,702 1,211
Finance expense 8 (81,702) {60,431)
Net finance costs (63,000) {59,220)
Share of profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 12 1,281 1,260
{Loss) f profit before taxation {19,317 25,136
Income tax charge g (13,360) (5,452)
(Loss} / profit for the year (32,737) 19,684
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company (34,977) 18,666
Non-controlling interests 21 2,240 1,018
{32,737) 19,684

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
Note March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000
{Loss) / profit for the year (32,737) 19,684
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuaral loss related to the pension scheme 26 (1,365) (207)
Foreign exchange losses (510)
Deferred tax on actuaral loss 18 98 32
Other comprehensive (loss) / profit for the year, net of tax {1,777) (175}
Total comprehensive (loss) / profit for the year {34,514) 19,509
Attributable to
Owners of the Company (36,754) 18,491
Non-centroling interests 2,240 1,018
(34,514} 19,509

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2019
Registered number: 06251684

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Equity accounted investments
Investments

Surplus on defined benefit pension scheme
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Inventory

Current tax assets

Trade and other receivabies
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Income tax liabiiitres
Provisions

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Provisions

Deferred tax ligbilittes

Total liabilities

Net liabilties

EQuiTY
Share capitai
Retained deficit

Attributable to:
Shareholders funds
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Note

10
11
12
13
26
18

14

15
16

17

15
16
17
18

19

21

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £000
716,707 417,046
96,570 26,678
1,464 1.152
428,237 5,780
1,626 1,089
- 1622
1,244,604 453 367
257 -
124,990 34,104
88,271 57,203
213,518 141,307
1,458,122 594,674
160,475 105,323
64,134 38,284
5,862 3618
1,413 807
231,874 148,042
- 16,332
1,552,349 761,476
10,051 567
32,419 .
1,594,819 778,375
1,826,693 926,417
(368,571) (331,743)
171,889 171,889
(540,460) (503,632)
{368,571) (331,743)
{380,292) (344,453)
11,721 12,710
(368,571) (331,743)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 26 July 2019 and

were signed on its behaif by

0y N

D D Singer
Director
26 July 2019



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
Faor the year ended 31 March 2019

Share capital Put option Retaned deficrt Total Non-controfling Total equity
reserve interests
Aote
£'300 £'060 £7000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 1 Apri 2017 165.310 {15.679) (509.418) (360 787) 12,128 {348,659)
Shares 1ssued in the year 6,572 - - 8 579 T §,579
Profit far the year - - 18,666 18,666 18 666
Non-controling interest share of profit 21 - - - - 1,018 1,018
Dividends paid to non-controling interests 21 - - {1.654) {1.654)
Non-controling interests acquired dunng the year 21 - - 1,218 1,218
Actuznal loss related to the pansion scheme 26 - - (207) (207) (207)
Fair value of put option payments - (8,736) - {8 736) - (8,738)
Deferred tax on actuarnal loss 18 - - 32 32 - 32
At 31 March 2018 171,889 {25,415) {490,927) (344,453) 12,710 [331,743)
At 1 Apri 2018 171,889 {25.415) (490,927} (344 453) 12710 (331.743)
Shares 15sued In the year 19 - - - - - -
Profit far the year - - (34877} {34,977) - (34 977)
Non-controling interest share of profit 21 - - - 2240 2,240
DCrerdends paid to non-contraliing interests 21 - N (3,428) {3 428)
Nan-controlling interests acquired during the year 21 - - - 199 198
Actuanal loss related to the pensian scheme 26 - - (1 385) (1.385) - {1.365)
Foreign exchange movements (510} {510) (910}
Fair valua of put option payments - 915 - 8915 - 515
Deferred tax on actuanal lgss 18 - - 48 98 - 38
At 31 March 2019 171,889 {24,500) {527,6a1) {380,292 11,721 {368,571}

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements

23



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss} / profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net finance costs

Share of profits of equity-accounted investments
Movement in retirement benefit obligations
Movement in put option reserve

Profit on disposat of invasiments

Impairment loss

income tax charge

Changes in:

inventones

Trade and other recewables

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Cash generated from operating activities

Imterest paid
income taxes paid
Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Dividends received from associates
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acguired
Acquisition of investments

Additions of property. plant and equipment
Additions of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of investments

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of loans and borrowings
Pgyment of debt issue costs

Diwvidends paid to non-controliing interests
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

24

Note

11

10

11

12

13
10

12
13

11
10

21

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£°000 £'000
(32,737) 19,684
11,543 4,445
25,058 1¢,412
32 297
63,000 59,220
{1,284} {1.260)
{1.844) 139
(962) (9,083)
(5,874) -
25,419
13,360 5452
95714 98,306
(85} -
{4,734) (15,142)
{6,338) 254
2,711 (1,347}
87,2638 82,071
{5,129) {3,224)
(9,093} (5,102}
73,046 73,745
28 23
969 1,905
(355,938) (5,249)
(428,057) -
(18,702) (6,252)
{7,634) {5,176}
11,474 -
(797,860) (14,749)
1,138,000 4,271
{373,392) (45,718)
(6,298) (32)
(3,428) {1,654)
755,882 {43,131)
31,088 15,865
57,203 41,338
88,271 57,203




Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

The movements in Group liabiities in the year as a result of financing activities are set out within the below
reconciliation

Year ended 31 Cash flows Accrued [nterest Debt issuance Changes in fair Year andad 21

. March 2018 costs value March 2019
Liabilities

E£'000 £000 £000 £'000 E'Q00 £'000

Long-term borrowings 799,770 764,807 74107 (4,452) {17 549) 1,616,483

Tolal Liabilities from financing activities 798,770 764 607 74,107 {4452} {17,549) 1,616,483

The notes on pages 26 to 67 form part of these financial statements
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting palicies

a) Reporting entity
Global Media & Entertanment Limited (the “Company”) is an incorporated company limited by shares and domiciled
in the Umited Kingdom Its registered address is 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA.

These consalidated financial statements are for the Global Media & Entertainment Limited group (the "Group”) and
they comprise the Company and its subsidiaries which are iisted in full In note 32 of the Company financial
statements

The Group's principal activity during the year was the operation of commercial radio stations in the United Kingdom
The Group financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 July 2019
b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (*IFRS”) and the Companies Act 2006

c) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented n pound sterling (£), which 1s the Group and the Company's functional
and presentational currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless ctherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to the Group to all periods presented in these financial statements, except in the case of
new accounting standards adopted 1n the year, detailed below

e) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements compnse the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes The financial
statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using consistent
accounting policies

A subsidiary 15 an entity controlied, either directly or indirectly, by the Company An investor controls an investee
when it 1s exposed, or has nghts, to variabie returns from its involvement with the investee and can affect those
returns through its power over the investee The Group has recorded the acguisition in Semper Vertas Sar!
(“Extenon”) as a financial asset as at the year end given the restrictions on control (see note 24).

The results of a subsidiary acquired dunng the period are included in the Group's results from the effective date on
which control is iransferred to the Group Al intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits
ansing from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated in full

Non-controling interests are measured at thew proportionate share of the acquiree’s identfiable net assets at the
date of transition

1) interests (n equity-accounted (nvestments
The Group's Interests in equity-accounted investrients comprise interests in associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entites 1in which the Group has significant influence, but not controt or joint control, over the
financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement In which the Group has joint control, whereby the
Group has nghts to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its habilities.

Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method They are inhally recognised
at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to inihal recognition, the consolidated financia! statements
include the Group's share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investments, unt
the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

a) Call and put options
Valuation of call and put options

When the Group enters in to cail or put options to purchase equity, the fair value of the option is recorded on the
statement of financial position Any subsequent movement in the fair value of the option 1s taken to profit and loss

Put option reserve

The put option reserve is the estimated cost of setting the Group's put options for non-controling interest
shareholdings
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

h) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet effective

New accounting standards

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“|ASB") became effective during the year ended 31 March 2019 The accounting policies adopted
in the presentation of these financial statements reflect the adoption of the following new standards, amendments
ta standards and interpretations as of 1 April 2018 The adoption of these standards has not impacted the Group's
earnings, however has required certain reclassificatons in the Group Statement of Financial Position and introduced
additional disclosure requirements

» IFRS 9 Financial instruments
« IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
Background

Replacing IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and related interpretations, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as
amended In Apni 20186) establishes new requirements for recognising revenue from contracts with customers. The
standard introduces a five-step model which, in summary, requires entities to determine the total transaction price
of the contract and allocate that value to individual performance obligations within the contract based on their relative
standaione selling prices Revenue Is then recognised as each performance obhgation 1s satisfied, either at a point
In time (generally for the transfer of goods) or over time {for the provision of services)

Transition

IFRS 15 has been adopted using the cumulative effect method Under this transition method, the full cumulative
impact of adopting the standard 1s recognised as an adjustment to the retained earnings balance at the date of
adoption However, the Group's assessment of the impact of adopting this standard has resulted in no materal
differences to the Group's retained earnings balance as at 1 April 2018

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract liability’ to describe "accrued revenue’ and 'deferred revenue’
and the Group has adopted this terminclogy

Apart from providing more extensive disclosures for the Group’s revenue transactions and changes In terminology,
the application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the overall financial perfformance or position of the
Group

The amount of adjustment for each financial statement line item affected by the application of IFRS 15 s (llustrated
below

Group Statement of Financial Position

Without
As adoption
reported of IFRS 15
{IFRS 15) Adjustments (1AS 18)
As at 31 March 2019 £000 £000 £000
Current assets
Contract assets 11,267 {11,267) -
Accrued iIncome - 11,267 11,267
Total current assets 11,267 - 11,267
Current liabilities
Contract liabilittes 23,891 {23,891} -
Deferred income - 23,891 23,891
Total current liabilities 23,891 - 23,891

The transition has not resulted in any differences to the Group statement of comprehensive iIncome
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

{FRS 9 Financial instruments

Background
Under IFRS 9, the treatment for financial hablities remains largely consistent with IAS 38, with most changes related
to the treatment of financial assets.

Transition

Given that the Group does not take part in hedging ar complex denvative-based arrangements, the financial assets
of the Group have been largely unimpacted by the transition to IFRS 8 and no matters have been identified with
any matenal impact as part of the Group-wide review

Standards effective in future periods

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are relevant
to the Company's activites and are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods beginming after 1 January
2019 or later and which the Company has decided not to adopt early

Effective for penods starting on or after 1 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases (will become effective for accounting pernods starting on or after 1 January 2019)
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to |AS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to I1AS 19 Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtaiiment or Seltlement

Annual improvements toe IFRS Standards IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Jomnt
Arrangements, |AS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

Effective for periods starting on or after 1 January 2020
o Definitron of a Business — Amendments to IFRS 3
«  Definition of Material - Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
» The Conceptual Framewaork for Financial Reporting
e |FRS 17 insurance Contracts

The Directors considered the impact on the Group's financial information and have considered only {FRS 16 to have
a material effect ynmediately upen adoption an 1 Apnl 2019,

IFRS 18 Leases

The new accounting standard, \FRS 16 Leases, endorsed by the EU on 8 November 2017 and effective for the
Group from 1 April 2019, provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their
treatment for both lessors and lessees, superseding 1AS 17 f eases

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group will make use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether a
contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 will
continue to apply to those leases entered or modified before 1 April 2019

The change In definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control  IFRS 16 distinguishes between leases
and service contracts on the basis of whether the use of an «dentified asset s controlled by the customer

Impact on lessee accounhng

IFRS 16 introduces changes to lease accounting for lessees under operating leases, requiring recognition of an
asset and a liability ta represent the right of use and future lease payments respectively, where previously these
leases were ‘off-balance sheet' Lease costs (such as rent) will be recognised in the form of depreciation and
interest, rather than as an operating cost, which will alsg impact the classification of associated cashflows in the
Group Statement of Cash Flows

The Group plans to adopt on a modified retrospective basis with the right of use asset egual to the lease hability at
transition date, less any lease incentives received No prior year restatement will be reguired

Under IFRS 18, nght-of-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 impairment of Assels,
replacing the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts

For leases with terms of 12 months or less, and for those of low-value assets, the Group will opt to recognise a
lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by IFRS 16.
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1. Accounting policies (continued)

The Directors expect the revisions to have a matenal impact on the presentation of the Company’s assets and
labiities due to the changes in lease accounting, primarly driven by property leases and advertising sites  Given
the acquisition accounting as disclosed In note 24 (business combinations) 1s provisional within the measurement
period defined in IFRS 3, the Directors’ impact assessment over IFRS 16 remains ongoing

An impact assessment has been completed using estmated discount rates based on lease-specific iIncrementa!
borrowing rates, with the following changes to reported financal information expected.

incarme statement

Lease costs of between £45m and £50m would be expected to be partally offset by an increase in depreciation of
£20m to £25m on the nght-of-use asset Finance costs would be expected to Increase by less than £10m,
ncerporating the unwind of the discounted lease hability

Staternent of financial position

At 31 March 2819, a nght-of-use asset of between £310m and £330m would be recognised as a non-current asset,
along with a lease Habilty in the same range

Statement of cash flows
The lease payments would be reclassified from operating activiies to financing achivities
Finance leases

The key differences between IFRS 16 and |AS 17 with respect to assets formerly held under a finance lease 1s the
measurement of the residual value guarantess provided by the lessee to the lessor IFRS 16 requires that the
Group recognises as part of its iease lability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as required by IAS 17

Based on an analysis of the Group's finance leases as at 31 March 2019, the Directors have assessed that this
change will not have an impact cn amounts recegnised in the Group’'s consolidated financial statements

The Directors do not expect a matenal impact on the Group financial statements as a result of the impact of IFRS
16 on lessor accounting

i) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in this note, the Directors are required to
make |udgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not clear
from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
relevant factors Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period 1In which the estimate is revised If the rewsion affects only that penod, or in the penod
of the revision and future periods If the revision affects both current and future penods

Critical judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are deait with separately
below), that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the
most significant impact on the amounts recognised in financial statements

Impairment of goodwill

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss These assets are reviewed
annually for impairment or more frequently if there 1s an mdication of impairment to ensure that they are not carmed
above their estimated recoverable amounts, being the migher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use To
assess If any impairment exists, eshmates are made of the future cash flows expected to resuit from the use of the
asset and its eventual disposal, alongside a consideration of financial performance against expectation

Useful economic I}fe of assefs

The Group's policy for applying useful economic lives and residual values of assets has been determined through
applying historical experience and taking into consideration the nature of assets and their intended use
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Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group uses estimates when determining the transaction pnce of customer contracts when the contract includes
vanable consideraticn At the reporting date, the Group has used forward iooking estimates to determine the most
ikely amount of variable consideration applicable to the contract

Control over the Group's subsidianes

The Group must assess whether it controls its subsidiaries when determining whether to consolidate its subsidiaries
Note 24 outlines the judgements made with regards to the acquisition of Exterton in the year

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA comprises earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and is stated before any
charges or credits relating to non-recurring items including restructuring and integration costs such as launch costs

including rebranding, redundancy costs, acquisition-related costs and vacant property provisions This is consistent
with prior year

Adjusted EBITDA 1s a non-statutory reporting measure and, as such, 1s not presented in the primary financal
statements of the Group, however It 1s an important eiement of the Group’'s internal reporting and impacts certain
performance-retated remuneration costs, as reported in the financtal statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Determination of discount rate — impact on Group borrowings

The Group uses a discount rate based on unobservable inputs (level 3) to value its borrowings The valuation of
the borrowings 1s sensitive to the discount rate used at the loans’ inception

The discount rate used by management in determining the value of the borrowings varies depending on the loans’
significant modification

Latest modification Dis count rate
Shareholder loan notes 31 Decemmber 2018 7 9%
Connected party loan ' 31 December 2018 7 9%
Loan from parent entity 31 Decerrber 2018 7 9%

An increase and decrease In the discount rate by 1% would result in the following movements in the valuation of
the Group's borrowings

Increase 1% Decrease 1%

Increase/(decrease) in borrowing (£'000)

Shareholder loan notes (49,016) 52,353
Connected party loan (5,355} 5,715
Loan from parent entity (7.374) 7,923

Acquusition accounting

The Group has made significant acquisitians during the year and key judgements exist as part of an assessment of
the fair values of assets acquired, including the identfication of intangible assets such as nght-of-use assets and
brand vaiues. These fair values are sensitive fo changes in the discount rate used and given the complexity and
size of the business combinations dunng the year, the Group has engaged specialists to assist in the determination
of the fair value of material acquired asset classes across the Primesight and Outdoor Plus groups.

Provisions have been made in the opening statements of financial position of the acquired entities as part of the
provisional farr value exercise and significant judgements are involved when assessing the value and nature of
potential future costs under 1AS 37 Any provisions included as part of management's assessments of the opening
statements of financial position impact the value of recognised goodwill, as discussed below The Group's property
provistons have materially increased as a result of management and external due diligence procedures performed
as part of the acquisition accounting.

Determination of discount rate — impact on impairment assessments

The Group uses its weighted average cost of capital to discount expected future cashflows across its operating
segments. The value in use of each CGU, and therefore the headroom above carrying value, is sensitive to changes
In this discount rate
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Management have performed sensitivity analysis and have determined that an increase of 1 4% in the discount rate
would result in £nil headroom across the Outdoor division  There is significant headroom in the Radio dimision and
the value in use 15 not matenally sensitive to changes in the discount rate applied to future cash flows

j) Going concern

At 31 March 2019 the Group had net habilities of £368 8m (2018 £331 7m) The Directors confirm that, after making
enquines, they have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate rescurces, and support of the
holders of the related party loans, to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future The related party
foans are principally held with the uttimate owners of the Group.

The Group has prepared forecasts of expected future cash flows for the three years ending 31 March 2022 ("the
forecasts”) The Board considers the forecasts have been prepared on a prudent basis taking into account current
consensus forecasts of the radio and out-of-home advertising markets However, the Group has alsa prepared a
worse than expected downside scenario Even under this sensitised scenario, the forecasts indicate that the Group
can continue to trade for the foreseeable future and operate within its facility and the associated financial covenants

The Directors consider 1t appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis The Directors’
forecasts show sufficient cash will be generated from the Group's operations to be able to repay the bank loan and
other obligations as they fall due

k) Segment reporting

A segment 1s a component of the Group that engages 1n busingss actvities from which it may earn revenues and
Incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other
components All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed reguiarly by the Group's board of Directors to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to a segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information 1s avallable (see note 2)

1} Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into pound sterling (£) the Group’s functonal currency, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuaton where tems are re-measured Foreign
currency translation gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabdities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
Income Statement Foreign currency transiation gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the Income Statement within finance income or finance expense All other foreign
currency translation gains and losses are presented in the Income Statement within direct costs and administrative
expenses

The assets and habilities of foreign operations, including farr value adjustments ansing on consaolidation, are
translated to the Group’s functional currency at foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the reporting date
Goodwiil remains translated at the historic exchange rate

The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the pernod, which
approximates the foreign currency exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Exchange differences
ansing from the translation of foreign operations are reported in other comprehensive income

m) Investments

Investments are included in the Statement of Financial Position (or Balance Sheet) at cost less amounts wntten-off,
representing impairment in value Imparrment charges are recorded if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable The Group has recorded its interest in Exterion as an investment
at fair value as at 31 March 2019, grven the restriction an control described in note 24

n) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Cost
includes the original purchase price of the assets and costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use
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Property, plant and equipment 1s depreciated at rates calculated to write off the cost less residual value of each
asset over s useful economic ife on a straight-tine basis over the following penods

Freehcld property 25 to 50 years
Capitalised leasehold costs Qver the term of the lease
Fixtures, fithngs and technical equipment 3to 10 years

Festival assets 3 to 10 years

Advertising panels 7 5 to 20 years
Transmitters 10 years

Gains and losses on disposals of assets are calculated as the difference between the proceeds received and the
carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal and are recogmsed in profit or loss

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment reviews of praperty, plant and equipment are undertaken whenever events ar changes in circumstances
indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable. If the fair value of an asset 1s estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the increased amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impaiment loss been recognised in prior
years Any impairment losses or reversals are recognised immediately in the income statement

0) Intangible assets

Software costs
Purchased software costs are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Costs
associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred

Software developmant costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met

- 1t is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be availlable for use,

- management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it,

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits,

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the deveiopment and to use or sell the
software product are available, and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product dunng ts development can be reliably measured

Software costs recognised as assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over therr estimated useful lives of three
years Acquired domain names are amortised over seven years.

Radio licences

Radio ligences are valued at cost less accumulated amaortisation and any accumulated /mpairment losses Radio
licences are amortised over the penod of the licence on a straight-line basis

Festival licences

Festival licences are valued at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated mpairment losses
Festival licences are amortised over the pencd of the licence on a straight-line basis.

Festival brands
The Group's festrval brands are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful economic lives of seven years
Impairment of intangible assels (excluding goedwil)

Impairment reviews are undertaken whenever events or changes in circurmnstances indicate their carrying value may
not be recoverable. If the fair value of an intangible asset is estimated to be iess than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount i1s reduced to its recoverable amount Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate, but restricted so that the iIncreased amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years Any
impairment losses or reversals are recognised immediately in the Income Statement
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1] Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The costs of an acgquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree Acguisition costs incurred are expensed and included in administrative
expenses

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
Subseqguent changes to the farr value will be recognised either within the income Statement or in other
comprehensive income

Goodwill on acquisition 1s mitialty measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the bustness combination over
the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilibes. Identfiable
intangible assets, meeting either the contractual-legal or separability critenon are recognised separately from
goodwill Following initial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill in respect of an acquired subsidiary I1s recognised as an intangible asset Goodwiil in respect of an acquired
associate or joint venture 1s included within (nvestments accounted for using the equity method

Goodwill 1s reviewed for mpaiment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired

Where the fair value of the interest acquired 1n an entity’'s assets, habilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
consideration paid, the excess 1s recognised immediately as a gain in the Income Statement

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired Is allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the combination’s synergies Impairment 1s determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit, to which the goodwill relates Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1s less
than the carrying amount, an impaiment loss I1s recognised Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill assocrated with the operation disposed of 15
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposai of the operation

Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance s measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash generating unit retained
q) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recetvables are recognised initially at fair value, which 1s deemed to be the transaction price
Subsequently, trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any provision for impairment

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and money market deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayabie
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are inciuded as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the Statement of Cash Flows.

s} Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are
recogrised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Share prermium

The share premium account represents the amount subscribed for share capital In excess of nominal value, less
any costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares

Reserves

The retained deficit represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Income Statement and
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary share capital are recognised as a llability in the Group’s financial statements in the penod in
which they are declared In the case of intenm dividends, these are considered to be declared when they are paid
and In the case of final dividends these are declared when authorised by the shareholders
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t) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acguired n the ordinary course of
business from suppliers Trade payabies are recognised tnitially at far value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost Trade payables are ciassified as current habilities If payment is due within one year or less,
otherwise they are presented as non-current habiities

u) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inthally at far value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently
carrned at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the Income Statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee 1s deferred until the draw-down
occurs To the extent there I1s no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the faciity will be drawn down, the
fee 1s capttalised as a pre-payment for liqguidity services and amortised over the period of the faciity to which it
relates.

v) Finance income and expense

Finance income compnses interest received on cash balances

Finance expense comprises Interest payable on borrowings, amortisation and write off of debt 1ssuance costs and
the unwinding of the discount on non-current provisions.

Interest is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest rate Interest payable on borrowings
includes a charge in respect of attnbutable transaction costs, which are recogrised in profit or loss over the penod
of the borrowings on an effective interest basis

w) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is initially recognised at fair value on the Statement of Financial Position {or Balance Sheet)
when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial instrument 1s derecognised
when the contractual nghts to the cash flows expire or substantively all risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred

The Group's financial assets are classified in accordance with IFRS 9 and subsequently measured at amortised
ceost or fair value, depending on classification

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost

- the financial asset 1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold financial assets in order to cotlect
contractuzal cash flows, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of prncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a provision for expected credit losses on financial assets The amount of expected cradit
iosses 1s updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit nsk since initial recognition of the financial
instrument

In assessing whether the credit sk has increased significantly, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that 1s both reasonable and supportable, including historical expenence and forward-looking information
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since intial
recognition If the financial instrument 1s determined to have low credit nsk at the reporting date.

For all financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows

that are due to the Group and the cash fiows the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
nterest rate.

Financial habiliies

Subsequent to nitial recognition, al! financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost using the effectve interest
method, or at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).
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Financial iabilitres at FVTPL

Financial habilties are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability 1s (1) contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination, {ii) held for trading or (iii) 1t 15 designated as FVTPL

Financial liabilites at FVTPL are measured at fair value with any gains or lasses anising on changes in fair value
recogrised in profit or loss {except for those attributable to changes in the credit risk of the hability, which is instead
recorded 1n other comprehensive income} Amounts recognised 1n other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, but are instead transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition of the
financial habiity

Financial liabiies measured subsequently af amortised cost
All other financial lrabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Derecogmnition of financial habilities

The Group derecognises financial labiliies when, and anly when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expred The difference between the carrying amount of the financial hability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable 1s recognised in profit or loss

x) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the penod comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s recognised In the Income Statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly In equity In this
case the tax s also recogmsed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

The current Income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date Management perodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns wath respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation I1s subject to interpretation It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Deferred income tax 1s recognised on temporary differences arsing between the tax bases of assets and liabilites
and therr carrying amounts in the Statement of Financial Positon However, deferred tax liabiities are not
recognised If they arise from the initial recognition of goodwilt Deferred income tax 1s not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or hiability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the fransaction affects neither accounting nor taxabie profit or loss Deferred income tax i1s determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax hability is
setftled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be
avallable against which the temporary differences can be utiised

Deferred income tax llabilites are provided on taxabie temporary differences arising from investrments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liabilites where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets are recogmsed on deductible temporary differences ansing from nvestments in
subsidianes only to the extent that it 1s probabile the temporary difference will reverse 1n the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the temporary difference can be utiised Deferred income tax assets
and labilttes are offset when there Is a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets against current tax
labilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and labilites relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authonty on erther the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis

y) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service 1s provided A hability 1s recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

Terrmination benefits

Terminatiors benefits are payable when employment s terminated by the Group before the narmal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits, and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that 1s within the scope of IAS 37
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Provisians, contingent habilies and contingent assets ("IAS 37") and involves the paymeni of termination benefits
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer Benefits falling due more than one year after the end of the
reporting perod are discounted to their present value.

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operates employee stakeholder retirement and death benefit schemes Both employees and employers
are required to make contributions with the employers’ contributions for each employee determined by the level of
contribution made by the employee and the employee’s length of service within the Group or subsidiary company
The employer's contributions are charged to profit and loss in the year in which the contributions are due

Definad henefit pansion schemes

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes which require contributions to be made to separately
admunistered funds. The cost of providing benefits under the plans are determined using independent actuanal
valuations These are based on the projected unit credit method and are recognised in accordance with the advice
of a qualified actuary Past service costs resulting from enhanced benefits are recogrised on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period or immediately if the benefits have vested

Re-measurement gains and losses, and taxation thereon, are recognised in other comprehensive incomse and are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods Re-measurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts ncluded in net interest) and changes in the amount of any asset
restrictions

Actuarial gains and losses may result from differences between the actuanal assumptions underlying the plan
habilities and actual experience dunng the year or changes in the assumptions used in the valuation of the pian
lhabilites

The aggregate defined benefit hability or asset recognised in the Statement of Finangial Position comprises the
present value of the benefit obligation using a discount rate based on approprnate high quality corporate bonds, at
the reporting date, minus any past service costs not yet recognised, minus the fair value of the plan assets, If any,
at the reporting date Where the plans are in surplus, the asset recognised is imited to the amount which the Group
expects to recover by way of refunds or reduction in future contributions

z) Share-based payments

The Group has a long-term incentive share scheme under which it makes equity-settled share-based payments to
eligible employees The cost of equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant
and recognised as an expense over the vesting penod, which ends on the date on which the employees become
fully entitled to the reward

Fair value I1s estmated using appropriate models for the awards under consideration In valuing equity settled
transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than the performance conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (market conditions) Any other conditions which are required to be met in order for
an employee to become fully entitled to an award are considered to be non-vesting conditions. These are also taken
Into account In determining the grant date fair value

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting cendition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition 15 satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

At each reporting date before vesting. the cumulative expense is calculated, representing the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the number of the achievement or ctherwise of non-
market vesting conditions and of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest or, in the case of an
instrument subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting The movement in cumulative expense since the
previous reporting date 1s recognised in the Income Statement, with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified or a new award 1s designated as replacing a cancelled or
settled award, the cost based on the orginal award terms continues to be recognised over the orginal vesting
period In addition, an expense Is recognised over the remainder of the new vesting period for the incremental fair
value of the modification, based on the difference between the fair value of original award and the fair value of the
modified award, both as measured at the date of modification. No reduction is recognised If this difference s
negative

Where an equity-settied award is cancelled (where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or
the employee are not met), it 1s treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is expensed immediately. Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the
canceliation or settlement date 1s deducted from equity, with any excess over fair value being treated as an expense
in the Income Statement
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aa) Provisions
Provisions for onerous leases, restructuning costs, legal claims and other future costs are recognised when

- the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
- it 15 probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
- the amount has been reliably estmated

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of the costs
expected to be required to settle the obiigation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
tme value of money and the risks specific to the obligation

Restructunng provisions are recogrised only when the Group has developed a detaled formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected The measurement of such a provision includes
only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, not those associated with the ongoing actrvities of the
entity

bb) Revenue recognition

Revenue recognition 1s based on the satisfaction of performance obhgations, and an assessment of when control
Is transferred to the customer The transaction price i1s allocated to these identified performance obligations,
ncluding an estimate of any vanable consideration, and stated net of any sales taxes, agency comrussions and
trade discounts

Customer contracts vary across the Group and contain a vanety of performance obligations Under IFRS 15, the
Group must evaluate whether the goods or services are transferred over time or at a point in time for each
performance obligation

A summary of how the key classes of revenue are recognised is provided below

Radio advertising Point in time, at date of broadcast

Sponsorship Over the term of the contract

Internet revenue Over the term of the contract

Transmussion fees Over the termn of the contract

Production of adverts Paint in tme, on date of release to clients
Enterprise revenue Point in time, on agreed settlement with all parties
Festival ticket revenue Paint in time, on the day of the festival

Festival non-ticket 5ales Point in time, at the point of sale

QOut-of-home media revenue Over the term of the contract

Out-of-home production revenue Point in tme, when provided for use

For goods and services that are transferred over time, revenue is recognised based on the number of days that
have transpired at the reporting date

Customer contracts are generally less than one year in duration, as are all standard payment terms, and therefore
no significant financing components exist within the Group’s operations

The transaction price 1s determined by the agreed terms of the contract In some instances, contracts will comprise
an element of vanabie consideration, often in the form of volume-based rebates In these instances, the fotal
transaction price of the contract 1s reduced by the estimated variable consideration

The Group applies the practical expedient to expense all incremental costs in obtaning new contracts when incurred
on the condition that the contract 1s less than one year in duration

Revenue on barter transactions 1s recognised only when the services being exchanged are of a similar nature

cc) Leases

The Group 1s both a lessor and lessee of property, plant and equipment Any sub-let income received In the year
1s immaterial
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dd) Fair value measurement

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determmation of fair value, for both financial
and non-financial assats and habilities. Set out below 1s an analysis of the valuation method of the Group’s financial
instruments

The different levels in the fair value hierarchy have been defined as follows.

» Levet 1 quoted (unadjusted) pnces in active markets for \dentical assets or habilites.

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included wrthin level 1 that are observable, for the asset
or hability, either directly (1 € as prices) or indirectly (i.e dernved from prices)
*Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs)
The Group has no assets or habilities where fair values have been determined for measurement purposes
Borrowings (fevel 3)

Borrowings, as disciosed in note 16 and note 20, are calculated as the present vaiue of the estimated future cash
flows based on the term and maturity of the loan and using estimated market interest rate available to the Group for
similar instruments at the loans’ meeption The Group uses a discount rate based on uncbservable iNputs {level 3)
to value its other borrowings (sharehoider loan notes, connected party loan and loan from parent entity) The
valuation of the borrowings s sensitive to the discount rate used at the loans’ mception The discount rate I1s
reassessed when new off-market loans are introduced or existing other borrowings are significantly modified

ee) Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Group enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies wittin
the Group, the Group considers these to be Insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect,
the Group treats the guarantee contact as a contingent lrability unti! as such time as It becomes probable that the
Group will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

2 Operating segments

The Group's chief operating decision maker has been dentified as the Board of Directors The Board of Directors
review the Group's Internal reporting monthly in order to assess performance and allocate resources

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports used by the Board. The Board marnly
assesses performance based on adjusted EBITDA

The Group has three reportable segments being commercial radio broadcasting, including associated operattons in
the United Kingdom, music festivals and out-of-home advertising (Outdoor).

Most of the Group's trading 1$ carried out and recognised within the United Kingdom, though the Group also operates
across North America and Europe.

All transactions hetween segments are completed on an arm's length basis

The Group is not reliant on any major customers and no single customer provides more than 10% of Group revenue
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
3. Qperating profit

Cperating profit 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property, piant and equipment
Operating lease rentals

- land and buidings

- motor vehicies and other leases
Lease income received

Auditor's remuneration for audit and non-audit services during the year was

Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit af the
Company's annual financial statements

Fees payable 10 the Group's auditor and its associates 0 respect of
Other services pursuant to legislaton

Taxahon comphance sernvices

Ali taxation advisory services not mncluded above

Corporate finance services

Pension services

Share option plan services

IT sernices

Year ended 31
March 2019

£'000

25,058
11,543
3z

42,610

1,331
(447)

Year ended 31
March 2019

£'000

377

13
459

2,710

53

Year ended 31
March 2018

£'000

19,412
4,445
296

6,675
1,087
(66)

Year ended 31
March 2018

£'000

175

13

192
264
25
53
19

As the Group's interest in Exterion is recognised as an investment as at 31 March 2019, audit and non-audit fees
payable to the Group’s auditor have not been included In the above, as it did not meet the definition of an affihate

and was under hold-separate

4. Revenue from contracts with customers

a) Diséggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers

Radio revenue
Festivals revenue
Qutdoor revenue

40

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£000 £000
358,403 329,545
69,561 58,464
52,081 -
480,045 388,009
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4. Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition
Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£000 £000

Goods and services fransferred at a point in time 418,725 377,788
Goods and services transferred over time 61,320 10,221
480,045 388,009

Goods and services transferred over tme includes commission revenue, sponsorships, transmission fees and
outdeor media revenue All other revenue for the group relates to goods and services that are transferred at a point
In time

b) Contract balances
As at 31
March 2019
£000
Contract assets 11,267
Contract habilities 23,871

The timing of invoicing, cash ¢ollection and revenue recognition results in trade recelvables, contracts assets and
contract habilities in the Group's statement of financial position Contract assets and liabilities are included in trade
recevables and trade payables balances within the Statement of Financial Position

As at the reporting date, any goods or services that have been transferred to customers for which consideration has
not yet been receved (or nvoiced for) are recognised as a contract asset Any consideration that has been received
(or iInvaiced for) in relation to goods or services that have not been transferred to the customer 1s recognised as a
contract llability

Contract asset balances, where applicable, are stated net of provisions for impairment All contract balances relate
to performance obligations expected to be settled within a year, and are ciassified as current in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Revenue recognised in the current penod that was included in the contract hability balance at the beginning of the
perod was £23 7m There was no revenue recognised in the period from performance obligations satisfied (or
partially satisfied) in previous perods

The Group applies the practical expedient provided by the standard not to disclose information about unsatisfied
performance obligations on the basis that all such performance obligations are part of contracts that have an
expected duration of less than one year

5. Employees

The average number of people employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year was as follows

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

Number Number

Sales 719 664
Programming 410 384
Administration 354 275
1,483 1.323

Al members of staff are contractually employed by subsidiary companies within the Group and not under direct
employment by Global Media & Entertamment Limited (the Company}
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5. Employees (continued)

The aggregate remuneration costs of these employees were as follows

Wages and salaries

Sccial secunty costs

Cantributions to defined benefit pension schemes
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes

8. Directors

The remuneration costs of the Group's Directors were

Remuneration

The remuneration of the highest paid Director was

Aggregate emcluments

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£'000 £'000
88,045 75,653
9,947 8,603
2,368 142
2,657 1,892
103,017 86,290

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £:000

. 7,345 7,181
7,345 7,181

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000

2,522 2,456

2,522 2,456

The amounts disclosed above represent the remuneration for the qualfying services of the Directors of the Group

|AS 24 Related party transactions (‘IAS 24") requires the Group to disclose all transactions and outstanding
balances with the Group's key management personnel |AS 24 defines key management personnel as those
persons having authority and responsibility for planming, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly
or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity

The key management personnel who are responsibie for planning, directing and controling the actrvities of the

Group and the Company are the Group's Dlrectors

Duning the prior year, a number of Directars were granted loans in relation to an equity-settled share-based payment
arrangement The loans are due for repayment on the settiement of the scheme The loan bafances outstanding

are

Loans to directors in redation to cash-settled share based
payment arrangement

No interest has been charged on the loans made to directors (2018 Enil)

7. Finance income

Bank interest receivable
interes{ on pension scheme assets
Movement in fair value adjustments on barrowngs
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Year ended 31
March 2019

£'000

142

Year ended 31
March 2018

£'000

142

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018

£000 £000

28 23

1,124 1,188

17,550 -
18,702 1,211
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

8. Finance expense

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts
Interest payable on other loans

Amartisation of debt 1Issue costs

Movement in fair value adjustments on borrowings
Interest on pension scheme lLabibties

9. Income tax charge

Analysis of tax charge in the year

Current tax expense

UK corporation tax on the (loss) / profit for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax expense

Deferred tax charge / (credit)

Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Adjustments (n respect of pnor years

Total deferred tax charge / (credit)

Income tax charge

{b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

(Loss) / profit before tax

(Loss) / profit before tax multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax of 19%

(2018 19%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Interesi expense not deductible for tax purposes
Recogrstion of deferred tax on temporary differences
Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Spectal factors affecting joint-ventures and associates
UK Dividend income from associates

Effects of changes in tax rates

Adjustments in respect of pnor years

Overseas rates vs UK rates

Income tax charge
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Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000

5,167 3.230
74,107 55,290
845 584

- 179

1,583 1,148
81,702 60,431

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £'000
11,569 9,902

94 (344)

11,663 9,558
1,651 (2.664)

46 (1,442)

1,697 (4.108)
13,360 5.452

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
£'000 £000
{19,377) 25,136
(3,682) 4,776
6,195 609
533 -
9,918 2139
592 -
72) (280)
(717) M
314 {31)
139 (1.785)
140 25
13,360 5,452
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
9. Income tax charge (continued)
{c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The standard rate of corporation tax i the UK changed from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 Apnil 2017 Accordingly,
the effective rate of 19% has been used in the computation of current tax

The 2016 Finance Act includes legisiation to reduce the main rate of comoration tax from 18% to 17% from 1 April
2020 The reduction in tax rates was substantively enacted on 15 September 2016.

The tax rates used to measure the deferred tax assets and habilities recorded in these financial statements are the
tax rates 1n the period in which we expect the deferred tax assets or hlabilibes to crystallise.

10. Intangible assets

Right-of-use Brands and
Software costs assets Licenses trademarks Goodwill Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'900 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnt 2018 31,641 - 20,881 75.860 645,809 774,171
Acquisiions - 179,936 1,179 9,773 151,617 342 505
Additions 7,803 - 23 8 - 7634
Disposals (7.915) - - - - (7.915)
At 31 March 2019 31.328 179,938 22,083 85,841 797 426 1,115,395
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 Apni 2048 18,882 - 6,266 18,000 315,977 357,125
Charge for the year 6,358 4,481 317 11,048 - 25,058
Thsposals {7.915) - - - - (7.915)
Imparment - - - 16,456 8,863 25419
At 31 March 2019 17,325 4,481 9,437 43,504 324 940 399687
Nat bock value
At 31 March 2019 14,004 175,455 12,626 42137 472,488 716,707
Right-of-use Brands and
Software costs assets L tr Ths Goou Total
£'000 £'0a¢ £'00¢ €080 £'000 £'300

Cost .
At 1 Apnt 2017 26,465 - 13,032 75,860 640,205 755,852
Aprpnsimons - - 7 829 - Gt 13,240
Addihons 5176 - - - - 5176
At 31 March 2018 31841 - 20,861 75,860 645,809 774171
Amortisation and impairrment
At 1 Apnt 2017 12,626 - 4047 5,163 315,977 337,713
Charge for the year 6,356 - 2,219 10,837 - 19,412
At 31 March 2018 18,882 . - 6,266 16,000 315,977 357,125
Net baok value e
At 1 Apnt 2017 13,939 - 8,985 70,657 324,318 417,939
At 31 March 2018 12,759 - 14,595 59,860 329,832 417 046

During the year the Group acquired festival brands with @ value of £9 8m (2018. £ni!) At 31 March 2019 the carrying
value of the festival brands was £58 6m and they had remaining useful economic lives of between four and seven
years. During the prior year, the Group acquired a festival licence with a valug of £2.0m and a useful life of two
years

All other acquisitions of intangible assets during the year were in relation to the new Qutdoor division (see note 24
— Business Combinations)

During the year, the Group capitaitsed £6.9m (2018. £4.7m) of software development costs
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10. Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill

The Group completes an imparment review of goodwill annually In accordance with 1AS 38 Impairment of assets
{"IAS 38") the Group has completed a review of its operations and determined that the Group has three cash-
generating units ("CGU") Only the goodwill allocated to the Radio and to the Festivals components have been
tested for impairment during the year, given that the values attributed to the acquired assets and recognised goodwil
are provisional as at the year end, though management have performed an initial assessment and have not
identified indicators of impairment within the Outdeoor division

The Group estimates value in use by projecting pre-tax cash flows for the next five years together with a terminal
value using a long-term growth rate and compares this to the far value less costs to sell In the assessment of the
recoverable amount The key assumptions underpinning the recoverable amounts of the CGUs tested for
impairment are forecast revenue and EBITDA

Radio CGU goodwill impairment review

The five-year plans used in the impairment models are based on management's expenence and future expectations
of performance

The key assumptions used are a pre-tax discount rate of 6 2% (2018 7 8%), a short to medium term growth rate of
3% (2018 3%), and a long-term growth rate of 3% (2018 3%)

The pre-tax discount rate used is denved from a weighted average cost of capital ("WACC") calcutation for the
Group and benchmarked against simitar erganisations operating within the sector

The total recoverable amount in respect of goodwill, as assessed by management using the above assumptions, is
greater that the carrying amount and therefore no impairment charge has been booked

Management consider that 1t 15 not reasonably possible for the assumptions to change so significantly as to eliminate
the excess

Festivals CGU goodwill impairment review

The recoverable amount of the goodwill aliocated to the Fesuvals CGU has been determined as lower than the
carrying value

The assessment of fair value less costs to sell has been determined using management's best estimates of a market
value, informed by sales values close to the year-end as an approximation of fair value, representing measurements
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy This information has also informed the value in use calculation performed
by management

In accordance with |AS 36 Impairment of assets ("IAS 36") the Group has completed a review of its operations and
has dentified performance-related indicators of imparrment n relatson to the Festivals division, prompting an
impairment assessment over the carrying value of festival intangible assets, mainly brands

As part of the assessment, management determined that the carrying values of certain brands as at the year-end
were higher than the recoverable amount Analysis of the component’'s performance over the past twelve months
was used In this assessment, along with expectations of future trading and wider market conditions  Fallowing the
assessment, an impairment charge of £25 4m has been recognised in profit and loss, £9.0m relating to goodwll
and £16.4m relating to brands

Goodwill allocated to each component 15 as follows

Goodwill NBV (£'m)

Component 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Radio 3231 3220
Festivals - 78
Outdoor 149 3 -
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11. Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 Apnil 2018
Additions
Acquisitions
Disposals

At 31 March 2019

Depreciation

At 1 April 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Net book value
At 31 March 2019

Cost

At 1 April 2017
Additions
Acguisitions
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Depreciation

At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

Net hook value
At 1 April 2017

At 31 March 2018

Transmitters,
fixtures and
l.and and technical Leasehold
buildings equipment Festival assets improvements Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
19,309 13,287 1.204 245 34,045
1,320 18,330 1.052 18,702
- 62,763 2 - 62,765
(628) (3,289) - - (3,917)
20,001 89,091 2,258 245 111,695
3,251 3,879 237 - 7,367
1,487 9,085 726 245 11,543
(628) {3,257} - - (3,885)
4,110 9,707 963 245 15,025
15,891 79,384 1,295 - 96,570
Transmitters,
fixtures and
Land and technical Leasehold
buildings equipment Festival assats improvements Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
18,621 3,784 608 245 28,258
877 4526 B49 - 5,252
- 35 15 - 50
(189) (58) (268) - (515)
19,309 13,287 1,204 245 34,045
1,921 1,205 15 - 3141
1,512 2,711 222 - 4.445
(182) (37) - - (219)
3,251 3,879 237 - 7,367
16,700 7,579 593 245 25,117
16,058 9,408 967 245 26,678
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12. Equity accounted investments

Cost

AL 1 April 2018

Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Dwidends received from equity accounted investments
At 31 March 2019

Cost

At 1 April 2017

Share of profit of equity accounted investments
Dividends receved from equity accounted investments
At 31 March 2018

The Group's investments in associates are

Investments in

Investments in

joint ventures associates Total
£000 £°000 £000
606 546 1,152
740 541 1,281
(700) (269) (969)
646 818 1,464
Investments in Investments in
joint ventures associates Total
1.220 577 1.797
736 524 1.260
(1.350) (555) (1,905)
606 546 1,152

% of ordinary share capital

Name Country ownership
EG Digitai Limited UK 490
The Digital Radio Group {London) Limited UK 46 5
Lost Ventures Limited UK 300
The Group’s Investments 1n joint ventures are
o . .
Name Country % of ordinary she?re capital
ownership
CE Digital Limited UK 500
InLink Lirmited UK 500

The principal actwity of CE Digital 1s that of managing multiplexes and 15 considered strategic to the Group's

actwvities InLink Limited 1s a joint venture between Primesight Limitedand Intersection and its principat activity is
the provision of advertising combined with Wi-FI to enhance multi-screen communication

The registered addresses of the Group's joint ventures and associates are.

Company

Registered Address

EG Digital Limited

The Digital Radic Group {Lendon) Limited
lost Ventures Limited

CE Oigital Limited

InLink Linted

Media House, Peterborough Business Park, Lynch Wood, Peterbarough,
PEZ 6EA

30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H TLA

15 Newland, Lincoln, LN1 1XG

30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA

5th Floor, The Met Bullding, 22 Percy Street. London, England, W1T 2BU
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13. investments

Cost Fair value Total
£'0C0 £000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2018 6,088 - 6,088
Additions - 428 057 428.057
Disposals (5,800} - (5,600)
At 31 March 2019 4588 428057 428,545
Provision for impairment
At 1 April 2018 308 - 308
At 31 March 2019 308 - 308
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 180 428,657 428,237
Cost Fair value Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2017 6,088 - 6,088
At 31 March 2018 6,088 - 6,088
Provision for impairment
At 1 Aprl 2017 308 - 308
At 31 March 2018 308 - 308
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 5,780 5,780

During the year the Group acquired 100% of the share capital in Semper Vertas Holdings S ar ! and its subsidianes
("Exterion”). On 14 November 2018, the CMA served an initial enforcement arder (IEQ} under section 72(2) of the
Enterpnse Act 2002 in retation to the completed acquisition, placing significant restrictions on Giobal's management
of the Exterion business As a result the Exterion group is not consclidated and is heid as an investment as at 31

March 2019 at fair value, as assessed under Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 13

Post year-end, the Group has consolidated the resuits of the Exterion group from the date at which control was
obtained, and as such, will not recognise its interest as an equity accounted investment in the Group statement of

financial pusitivn beyurd Wus Jdale {see nule 28)

The Group sold its entire investment in AdsWizz Inc in June 2018 for a combination of cash and share consideration,

recegnising a gain on sale of £5 9m

Details of the Group's investments are as follows

48



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

13. Investments (continued)

Name Country ownership
Semper Veritas Holdings S.ar Lux 100
Doubleplay | Limited UK 100
Doubleplay fi Limited UK 100
Doubleplay N1 Limited UK 100
Exterion Med|alHo|dmgs Limited UK 100
Exterion Linited UK 100
Exterion Group Holdings Limited KY 100
Exterion Media Metra Services (UK) Limited UK 100
Exterion Leasing (BDA) Limited BDA 100
Exterion Media (UK) Limited UK 100
Exterion Leasing (UK) Limited UK 100
Exterion Partner (BDA) GP BDA 100
Exterion Holdings (UK) Ltd UK 100
Exterion Holdings | (Netherlands) 8 v NL 100
Exterion Media (Netherlands) B NL 100
Exterion Holdings ¢ (Netherlands) B V NL 100
Exterion Media (ltaiy) St L T 100
Exterion Holdings (BVI) Limited BWVI 100
Exterion Holdings (HK) Limited HK 100
Extenon Media (Iretand) Limited IE 100
Extenon Holdings (France) SAS FR 100
Extenion Media (France) SA FR 100
Exterion Media Spain, SAU ES 100

The registered address of these investments 1s 7th Floor, Lacon House, 84 Theobald's Road, London, England,

WC1X 8NL, with the exception of the following entities

Company

Registered Address

Semper Ventas Holdings S ar#
Exterion Groug Holdings Limited

Exterion Leasing (BDA) Limited
Exterion Pariner (BDA) GP

Exterion Holdings | (Netheriands) B V
Exterion Media (Netherlands) B V
Exterion Holdings (1 {Netherlands) B v
Exterion Media (ltaly) Srb

Exterion Hoidings (BV1}y Limited

Externion Holdings (HK) Limited
Exterion Media {ireland) Limited
Extenion Holdings (France) SAS
Extenon Media (France) SA
Extenion Media Spain, S.A

8-10, Avenue de la Gare. L1610, Luxermbourg

Floor 4 Willow House Cricket Square, PO BOX 268, Grand Cayman, Kt
1104, Cayman [slands

Cumberland House 1 Victona Street, 9th Floor, Hamilton, Hm11, Bermuda
Cumberland House 1 Victona Street, 9th Floor, Hamilton, Hrl1, Bermuda
Karspeldreef 8 Amsterdam Z O, 1101 CJ Netherlands

Karspeldreef 8 Amsterdam Z O , 1101 CJ Netherlands

Karspeldreef 8 Amsterdam 2.0, 1101 CJ Netherlands

Vicolo clieco S Giacometto, 2 - Verona, [taly

2/F Palm Grove House, P O Box 3340, Road Town, Torgla, British Virgin
Islands

Level 54, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
25-28 Adelaide Road, Dubin 2D02 RY98

3 Espl. du Foncet, 92130 Issy-les-Mouhneaux, France

3 Espl. du Foncet, 92130 Issy-les-Moulneaux, France

Calle Valle de 1a Fuenfria, 3, 28034 Madnd. Spain
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14. Trade and other receivables
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £000
Gross trade receivabies 85,677 55,247
Less provision for impairment (358) (418)
85,319 54,829
Cther debtors 5,544 3,281
Prepayments 22,860 17.943
Accrued income - 8,051
Cantract assets 11,267 -
124,990 84 104

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £000
Balance at the beginning of the year 418 117
Movement in provision (60) 301
Baiance at the end of the year 358 418

The above table detaiis the movements in the provision for the impairment of trade receivables

The carrying value of trade and other receivables 1s a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other
receivables. The Group measures the provision for impairment at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
(ECL), estimated with reference to past default expernience as well as the debtor's current financial position

There has been no change in significant assumptions made during the current reporting period and the provision
remains immaterial to the Group’s trade recervable balances.

The Group writes off a trade receivable where there is infformation indicating that the debtor 1s n severe financia
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

There are no matenal overdue trade recevables that have not been provided against and there is no contractual
balance outstanding on financial assets written off dunng the year The Group considers its exposure to credit risk
as immaterial given the majonty of trade receivables are nsured
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15. Trade and other payables

Current 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£'000 £'000

Trade payables 27,812 15,150
Other taxes and social security costs 9,882 13,481
Other creditors 13,249 8,756
Accruals 85,661 44 285
Deferred income - 23,651
Contract liabilties 23,871 -
160,475 105,323
Non-current 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£000 £000

Accruals - 16,332
- 16,332

The carrying vatue of trade and other payables 1s a reasonable approximation of the fair value of trade and other
payables All of the Group’s trade and other payables are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method

16. Borrowings

Current

Bark loans and overdrafts

Accrued interest

Non-current

Bank lcans

Other loans

Total borrowings

51

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£000 £000
35,000 23.303
29,134 14,991
64,134 38.294

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £:000
301,407 111,857
1,250,042 649,619
1,552,349 761 476
1,616,483 799,770
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16. Borrowings (continued)

The nominal value of the Group's borrowings at each reporting date s as follows

Accrued interest
Semior term loans
Sharehaolder loan notes
Connected party loan
Loan from parent enfity

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings at each reporting date is as follows

Accrued interest
Senior term loans
Shareholder inan notes
Connecled party loan
Loan from parent entity

The interest rates on the Group's borrowings are as follows

Interest rates on variable interest borrowings

Sharenolder foan notes
Senior term loans

Connected party loan

Interest rates on fixed interest borrowings

Shareholder ioan nates

Loan from parent entity

Fair value discount rate

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £000
29,134 14,991
341,250 135,550
950,079 340,984
97,328 87,551
204,165 204,166
1,621,956 783,242

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
29,134 14,991
336,407 135,160
1,014,192 379,415
114,594 91,965
122,156 178,239
1,616,483 799.770

31 March 2019

% above LIBOR

7.00%
2.25%
10.50%

31 March 2018

% above LIBOR

160%
10 50%

31 March 2019

3t March 2018

Fixed rate Fixed rate
15.00% 15.00%
0.00% 0.00%
7.91% 7 80%

An analysis of the sensitivity of the fair value of borrowings to changes in the discount rate has been disciosed in

Note 1 to the Group Financial Statements

52



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
16. Borrowings (continued)

The Group's borrowings have the following matunty profile
31 March 2018 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Less than one year 174,284 101.600
Two to five years 735,802 808,078
Over five years 1,451,158 -
2,361,244 909,678
Less interest cash flows
Sentor term ioans {40,737) (4.,846)
Shareholder laan notes (620,840) (102,295)
Connected party loan {77,711) (19,295)
Loan from parent entity - -
Total principal cash flows 1,621,956 783.242

Buring the year, the Group underwent significant refinancing of both external and shareholder debt On 14
December 2018, the Group settled existing borrowings under the 2014 facility and entered into a term loan of
£350 Om, resulting In a net increase in borrowings of £229 1m  These funds were used to repay shareholder loans
of £179 8m along with accrued interest of £49 3m  Interest on the new loans 1s charged at a margin of between 1 5
and 2 5% pius LIBOR depending on leverage in the preceding quarter, as calculated as part of the covenant
comphance requirements  Information about the secunty related to these loans 1s included in note 30

The Company 1ssued £788 Om loan notes to the shareholder dunng the year, which attract annual interest at 7% +
LIBOR

The shareholder loan and connected party loans are listed on the International Stock Exchange (“TISE™) On 31
December 2018 the Shareholder Loan notes had interest of £0 9m capitalised to the loan pnncipal, and the
Connected party loan had interest of £9 8m capitalised to the locan principal These, together with the extension of
the loans to 2025, resulted in substantial modifications of the loans The senior term notes are secured by fixed and
fioating charges over the assets of the Group.

The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities of £10 Om at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018 £10 Om)
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17. Provisions

E'000
At 1 April 2018 1,374
Additions 10,243
Utilised dunng the year (153)
At 31 March 2019 11,464

£'000
At 1 April 2017 2,721
Ulhised during the year (924)
Released during the year (423)
At 31 March 2018 1,374

The breakdown of provisions between current and non-current is as follows

31 March 2018 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Current 1,413 807
Non-current 10,051 567
Total 11,464 1,374

Provisions include onerous lease provisions for vacant office and studio space that the Group has leased but is not
currently using, or where the Group is committed to vacate, in addition to casts of exit. The provision is calculated
as the difference between the total future lease payments less any amounts expected to be recovered by sub-
leasing the space There are inherant uncertainties in measuning the provisions of the future outflows

Provisions also include the costs of dismantling outdoor advertising panels
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18. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax iabilties

At 31 March 2018

Charge to the income statement

Recognised in other comprehensive
Income

Acquired in the year

At 31 March 2019
Defosrad tax assets
Defarred tax liabiities
At 31 March 2019

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax habhties
At 31 March 2017

Credit to the income staternent

Recognised 1n other comprehensive
income

At 31 March 2018

Deferred tax assets

Ceferred tax habiities

Al 31 March 2018

Property, plant and

equipment and Tax losses Finane.al Pensian Other Total
intangcle assets instruments surplus
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
5844 1,908 8.185 - 34 15871
(9.227) - (4,926) (196) (14,349)
{3,383) 1908 3259 {196) 34 1.622
5,064 (1,112) (5.734) N 262 (1.697)
- 98 98
(33.358) 908 - 8 (32,442)
(31.677) 1,704 {2.475) (267) 296 (32,418}
4,081 1,704 - - 295 6,081
(35,738} - (2,475) (267} - (38,480)
{31,677) 1,704 (2,475) {267) 296 (32,419)
6,171 896 8,097 - 11 16 075
(11.424) (6.917) (251) (18.592)
(5.253) 896 2.080 (251) 1 (2.517)
1,870 1.012 1,179 23 23 4107
32 - 32
(3,383) 1,908 3,259 (196) 34 1,622
5,844 1.908 8185 - 14 16,971
9.227) - (4,326) (196} 14 349)
(3.383) 1908 3 258 (1986) 34 1622

Deferred tax1s provided in full on taxable temporary differences under the hability method using applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets and hatilities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an

intention to settle the balances net

The following table hists the Group's unrecognised deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Tax losses

Interest restrnicted under corporate interest restnction (CIR) carned forward

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £000
183 20
15,965 14,093
9,586 4,624
25,734 18,737

These potental deferred tax assets have not been recognised on the basis that it 1s not sufficiently certain when
taxabile profits that can be utilised to absorb the reversal of the temporary difference will be made in the future

19. Share capital

Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid

Ordinary shares of £1

20. Funding and financial risk management

Financial risk management

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£ £
171,889,147 171,889,147
171,889,147 171,889,147

The Group holds and uses financial iInstruments to finance its operations and to manage its interest rate and hquidsty

nsks The Group primanly finances its operations using share capital, revenue and borrowings

The Group’s activities expose It to a varnety of financial nsks market nsk {Interest rate risk and foreign exchange

nisk}, credd nsk and quidity nsk
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The Group 1s prmarily funded by debt and although both shareholder and bank loans have increased during the
year, the Group’s operations are cash generative, and the general exposure to iquidity nsk 1s considered to be low
The Group monitors performance agamst its banking covenants on a quarterly basis

The Group does not engage in trading or speculative activites using denvative financral instruments
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure
Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in pnices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the
Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in nterest rates. The Group has
both fixed rate and floating rate borrowings The ratio of fixed to floating rate borrowings 1s monitored. on an cngoing
basis to ensure that the Group 1s not too exposed to vanabiity In interest rates

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange nisk is the nisk of a change in the Group's cash flows due to a change in foreign currency exchange
rate The vast majonty of the Group's income and expenditure I1s in pound Sterling therefore the Group s not
exposed to significant foreign exchange nsk

Credit nsk

Credit nisk 1s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
meet Its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers

The Directors consider the Group's credit sk from cash, cash equivaients and deposits to be low as the Group only
enters transactions with banks or financial institutions with a credit rating of A or above

The Group has policies in place to manage potential credit nsk from trade recevables The Group mitigates the
risk of payment defauit by its customers by the use of trade credit insurance for high value customers {ustomer
credit terms are determined using iIndependent ratings agency data and regularly updated to reflect any changes in
customer circumstances or trading conditions Trade receivables are reviewed on a regular basis by the Group's
credit control department to ensure debts are recovered in full

The Directors do not expect any significant losses of receivables that have not been provided for
Liqurdity nsk

Liquidity nsk is the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obiigations as they fall due. The Group's
finance department reguiarly monitors forecasts of the Group's liquidity reguirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs

Capital management

The Group relies on capital for organic growth The Group defines capital as equity as shown in the Statement of
Financial Position plus net debt (total borrowings less cash) and seeks to achieve an acceptable return on gross
capital

The Group manages Its capital structure using a number of measures and taking into account its future strategic
plans. Such measures include ensuring the Group maintains sufficient iquidity from the cash that the Group has
genearated from operations

Fair value

Financial assets compnise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial liabilites comprise
trade and cther payables and borrowings.

The fair value of trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables is not
materially different from their carrying value

The following table shows the fair value of borrowings, mcluding their value in the fair value hierarchy
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Farr value 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

hiegarchy
£'000 £'000
Senior term loans Level 3 336,407 135,160
Shareholder loan notes Level 3 1,014,192 379,416
Connected party loan Level 3 114,594 91,965
Loan from parent entity Level 3 122,156 178,239
1,587,349 784,780

Level 3 inputs are unobservable mputs for the asset or llabifity The investment in Extenion, disciosed in note 13, 1s
recorded at £428 1m and has been valued using a Level 3 input within the fair value hierarchy

Call and put options

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into call and put options to purchase subsidiary company
non-controling interest shareholdings for Broadwick Holdings Limited, Waxarch Limited and Victorious Festivals
Limited The farr value of the Broadwick Holdings Limited and Victorious Festivals Limited options was £nil at 31
March 2019 (2018 £nil) The option related to Waxarch Limited expired at the year ended 31 March 2019 without
exercise

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into a put option agreement to purchase subsidiary
company non-controlling interest shareholdings for Lock’N'Load Limited The fair value of this option at 31 March
2019 was £nil (2018 £nil)

Duning the prior year, the Group entered into a call and put option to purchase the remaining member interests of
Audio HQ LLC The fair value of this option at 31 March 2019 was £nil (2018 £nil)

A gross llability has been recognised In non-current labilthies and within reserves for the expected future settlement
of the put options where the Group currently has control of the related subsidiary, with movement in the expectation
accounted for within administrative expenses in the current year. The estimated cash outflow on exercise of the
options have been calculated by taking a multiple of future years' EBITDA performance and discounting to present
value using the Group’s pre-tax weighted average cost of capitai

21. Non-controlling interests

£'000
At 1 April 2018 12,710
Acguisitions during the year 199
Share of profit after taxation for the year 2240
Drvidends paid to non-controling interests (3428}
At 31 March 2019 11,721

£'000
At 1 Apni 2017 12,128
Acquisitions during the year 1,218
Share of profit after taxation for the year - 1,018
Dwidends paid to non-controlling interests {1.854)
At 31 March 2018 12,710

57



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
22. Commitments and contingencies

The Group's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are set out below

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Land and buildings
Within one year 7,539 6 816
Between two and five years 21,479 23,470
After five years 38,921 43,334
657,939 73,620
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £000
Motor vehicles and eguipment
Within one year 1,236 1,079
Between two and five years 673 854
After five years - -
1,909 1,933
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£000 £000
Advertising sites
Within one year 42 101 -
Between two and five years 120,426 -
After five years 199,188 -
361,715 -

The Group’s future minimum lease rental iIncome expected to be received under non-cancellable operating leases

is as follows

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £000

Lease rental income
Within one year 462 97
Between two and five years 1,143 238
After five years 2,553 -
4,158 336

The Group leases property, motor vehicles and office eguipment and advertising sites The Group's leases do not
include any materal contingent lease payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restrniction clauses

The Group s also a lessor and leases out properties. These leases da not include any material cantingent lease

payments, purchase options, escalation clauses or restriction clauses
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During the year the Group traded with Its associates, joint ventures and with entities with common control to the
Group All transactions were in the normal course of business and priced under normal trade terms  All outstanding
balances are repayable on demand Balances and transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties, have been eliminated on consclidation and are not disclosed in this note  Transactions between
the Group and its associates are disclosed below

The Company's immediate parent company s Global Radio Group Limited (Jersey) Details of loans outstanding
with this entity are given in note 16

During the year, the Company was charged £1,299,598 (2018 £1,260,000) in respect of digital radio services by
CE Dugitai Limited, an associated undertaking of the Group, of which £nl was outstanding at 31 March 2019 (2018
£nil). The Company received £399,025 (2018 £271,000) in respect of legal expertise and engineering time from
CE Digital Limited

Digrtal Radio Group (London) Limited, an associated undertaking of the Group, operates a digital radio multiplex
and durnng the year the Company paid £94,074 (2018 £118,000) to this company for transmission services The
Company had an outstanding balance owing of £nil at 31 March 2019 (2018 £nil)

Now Digital East Midlands Limited, an associate of the Group, operates digitai radio multiplexes and durning the year
the Company paid £1,038,834 (2018 £765,000) to this company for transmission services The Company had an
outstanding creditor of £nil at 31 March 2019 (2018 £nil)

Radio Centre Limited, in which the Group has an investment, 1s a trade body promoting commercial radio to
advertisers Radio Centre Limited 1s funded by lewvies paid by the commercial radio industry in the UK based on
volumes of advertising revenue During the year the Company paid £1,724,478 (2018 £1,672,000) in levies to
Radio Centre Limited and had an outstanding balance of £nil at 31 March 2019 (2018 Enif)

Global Radio Services Limited also provides contract accounting services for which 1t charged £40, 138 for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018 £39,000) to the Group's non-wholly owned subsidiary Independent Radio News
Limited (IRN), a provider of news services to commercial radio In addition, the Company's share of the IRN rebate
to client stations for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to £3,459,067 (2018 £3,515,000) At the financial
year end the net balance due to Independent Radic News Limited at 31 March 2019 was £1,390,475 (2018
£1,348,000)

During the year the Group had a number of recharge arrangements with vanous members of the Global
Entertainment and Talent Group, with whom the Group shares a director As at 31 March 2019 the outstanding
debtor was £123,915 {2018 £nil)

Duning the year the Company charged the Globa!l Entertainment and Talent Group £nil (2018 £30,000) in respect
of occupancy

During the year, the Group recognised rebate income of £465,900 (2018 £364,000) from a related party, Kaboodle,
with whom the Group shares a director At 31 March 2019 there was an outstanding balance due to the Group of
£124,400 (2018 £271,000)

The Group considers the Directors to be key management personnel Related party transactions with key
management personnel have been disclosed in note &

in the opinion of the Directors, there were no other related party transactions dunng the year
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During the year, the Group made several acquisittons across the media industry, into digital advertising (on-air and
out-of-home) as well as radio broadcasting Smaller acguisitions were also made i the music events and
production industries

Date of
Name acquisition Country % Ownership Purchaser Business Unit
|
Project kanic Holdings Limted 16/07/2018 UK 100 0% Globa Rjgsegew'ces Outdoor
Lancashre Broadcastng Galaxy Radwo
A 0,
Company Limted 31/07/2018 UK 100 0% Manchester Limited Radio
Bell Holdco Limited 20/0812018 UK 100 0% Globaf Radic Services Qutdoor
Limted

Leanstream Inc 31/10/2018 Canada Trade and assets DAX Drgital Audio Radio
Exchange nc

Beven Limited 17/1212018 UK 100 0% Boardmasters Ltd Festivals

VHEH Lirvted 1741212018 UK 100 0% Boardmasters Ltd Festrvals

Outdoor acquisitions

Qutdoor Pius and Pnmaesight

The Group diversified into out-of-nome media ("Outdoor') dunng the current year, making a sernes of strategic
acqusitions into the sector, two of which represent business combinations under IFRS 3  These acquisibons will
allow the Group to further expand its advertising offering to clients and consumers, providing opportunities for
vertical integration as well as geographical diversification

The purchase of the Project Iconic Hoidings Limited group (including its trading operations as Qutdoor Plus Limited)
completed in August 2018 and Beil Holdco Limited (Pnimesight Limited) in September 2018

On 15 November 2018, Global Radio Services Limited completed its acquisition of the entire share capital of
Semper Veritas Holdings S ar | (Exterion)

The acquisition of Exterion is not considered a business combination under IFRS 3 as at the reporting date, as on
14 November 2018, the CMA served an inibal enforcement order (E0) under sechion 72(2) of the Enterprise Act
2002 1n relation to the completed acquisition, placing significant restrictions on Global's management of the Exterion
business The CMA cleared the completed acgusition on 16 April 2019, from which date control passed to the
Group and the Extenon businesses fully consolidated. As at the year end, the Group's interest in Exterion Is
recorded as an investment at fair value (note 13)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the two outdcor businesses defined as a business combination under IFRS
3 form an operating segment and a singie cash-generating unit, with separate reporting and discrete financial
Hlurinabion assessed by aoageinenl oo d mwatbly bass The new divisiwon s o e edily slages of nlegiabion
and the goodwill on acquisition has not been allocated until synergies have been fully assessed

The far valuation of the acquired assets and fabilities remains in progress as at the date of preparation of the
financral statements, as permitted within the measurement period under IFRS 3, as management's compilation of
the necessary financial information for spectfic jJudgements 1s ongomng  Provisional fair value of identrfiable assets
and liabilfues acquired, purchase consideration and goodwill for each Outdoor acquisition is listed below
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Qutdoor Plus Primesight Total
fair value
£'000 £000 £'000
Intangible assets 75,166 104,770 179,936
Property, plant and equipment 34,145 28,492 62,637
Trade and other recevables 10,545 26,113 36,658
Cash 1,083 3,227 4310
Other assets 153 - 153
Trade and other payables (117,624) (140,358) (257,982)
Deferred tax liability (13,224) (18,083} {31,307)
Net assets acquired (9,758) 4 161 (5,595)
Goodwill 42,813 106,448 148,261
Total consideration 33,057 110,608 143,666
Satisfied by:
Cash 32,757 110,609 143,366
Deferred consideration 300 - 300
33,057 110,609 143,666

Goodwill 1s calculated as the difference between the fair value of consideration and acquired assets and habilities
None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductible for tax purposes

Deferred consideration of £0 3m 1s In respect of payments to former employees 18 months post-completion and
attracts no service-related condition A separate retention bonus of £1 5m 1 also payabie at this time, contingent
on continued employment, and as such has been recognised as remuneration evenly throughout the service period

Deal-related costs of £2 1m have been charged to administration expenses in the [ncome Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2018 relating to the Cutdoor Plus and Primesight acquisittions and are not recognised within
consideration

Since the acguisition dates, the acquired entities have contnibuted £52 1m to the Group's revenue and a loss of
£8 9m  If the acquisitions had accurred on 1 Apnl 2018, the acquired entities would have contributed £93 5m to the
Group's revenue and £1 5m to retamed profit

Acquisition of Semper Ventas S a r [ (Extenon)

As referenced above, the Group has not consolidated the Exterion results into the Group’s financial reporting as at
31 March 2019 and has recorded the transaction as an investment as at the reporting date

The acquisition accounting for the Extenon business combination is incomplete at the tme the financial statements
have been authonsed for 1ssue, and as such, the Group has not made the required disclosures under IFRS 3
paragraph B64

Radio acquisitions

During the year, the Group made two separate acquisitions within the Radic operating segment, both of which are
deemed individuaily immatenal The Group acquired 100% of the equity share capital of Lancashire Broadcasting
Company in order to extend its reach nationwide and the acquisition of the trade and assets of Leanstream Inc will
allow the Group to widen its audience in the digital advertising space and expand further into North Amenca The
fair values of identifiable assets and habilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwill for these acquisitions
are shown below

61



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
24. Business combinations (continued)

Total
fair value
£'000
Intangible assets 1,179
Property, plant and equipment 127
Trade and other receivables 283
Cash 21
Trade and other payables (420}
Deferred tax liability (206)
Net assets acquired 984
Goodwill 1,101
Total consideration 2,085
Satisfied by:
Cash 1,735
Contingent consideration 350
2,085

Goodwilt is calculated as the difference between the fair value of consideration and acquired assets and liabilities
None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductible for tax purposes

Contingent consideraton of £0 4m was determined based on revenue targets in the four months post-completion

Deal-related costs of £0 3m have been charged to administration expenses in the income Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2019 relating to the two Radio acquisitions.

Since the acquisition date, the acquired entities have contributed £1 1m 1o the Group's revenue and a loss of £0 1m.
If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 April 2018, the acquired entities would have contributed £2 1m to the Group’s
revenue and £0 1m to retained loss

Festivals acquisitions

During the year, the Group made two acguisitons within the live events and production industry, included within the
Festivals operating segment

Total
fair value
£'000
Intangible assets 9,773
Property, plant and equipment 2
Trade and other receivables 1
Cash 3
Trade and other payables (957)
Deferred tax hability {1,304)
Net assets acquired 7,518
Goodwill 1,262
Non-controlling interests {198)
Total consideration 8,582
Satisfied by:
Cash 8,582
Contingent consideration -
8,582

62



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Group Financial Statements
24, Business combinations (continued)

On 21 September 2018 the Company purchased 51% of the ordinary share capital of Hydra Events Limited,
incorporated in the United Kingdom

On 17 December 2018 the Company purchased 100% of the ordinary share capital of Boardmasters tt Limited
(formerly known as Vision Nine Entertainment Holdings Limited} in order to subscribe for redeemable shares in
Eleven Limited Management acquired Boardmasters Il Limited in order to exit a strategic services agreement,
under which Eleven Limited were entitled to 45% share of profit

Goodwill 1s calculated as the difference between the fair value of consideration and acquired assets and habilites
None of the purchased goodwill 1s deductible for tax purposes

Deal-related costs of £0 3m have been charged to admimstration expenses in the Income Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2019 relating to the two Festival acquisitions

Since the acquisiton date, the acquired entities have contributed £1.2m to the Group's revenue and a profit of
£1 0m If the acquisitions had occurred on 1 Apnt 2018, the acquired entities wouid have contributed £4 Om to the
Group's revenue and £0 8m to retained profit

25. Share-based payments

The Group operates eguity-settled share-based payment arrangements as follows
The Growth Shares Scheme (“the Scheme”)

On 30 January 2015, a number of directors acquired C, D, E and F shares in GRHL, for which the directors paid
unrestricted market value The C, D E and F shares are subiect to a put and call eption structure whereby the
directors may sell the shares to GRHL, or GRHL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, within vanous
60 day windows between 1 August 2017 and 30 September 2025 The value at which the shares can be bought
or sold shail be determined by a formula based on the growth In value of the shares over a certain mimmum
threshold value The shares provide the holder with an interest in the growth of the business beyond that threshold,
which has been set at 20% above the original vatue

Further on 1 August 2017 a number of directors acquired G shares in GRHL, for which the directors paid unrestricted
market value The G shares are subject to a put and call option structure whereby the directors may sell the shares
to GRHL, or GRHL may acquire the shares from the directors for cash, within a 60-day window between 1 August
2020 and 30 September 2020 The value at which the shares can be bought or sold shall be determined by a
formuia based on the growth \n value of the shares over a certain mimimum threshold value The shares provide
the holder with an interest in the growth of the business beyond that threshold, which has been set at 17 5% above
the onginal value

The number of C,D, E and F shares issued in 2015 and G shares 1ssued in 2017 and outstanding at 31 March 2019
was 421,150 (31 March 2018 421,150)

The EBITDA used to determine the value of the C,D E, F and G Shares will be the EBITDA for the year ended
immediately before the date of disposal

Share-based payment expense
The charge recognised in the Income Statement in respect of the Scheme was £4,835,000 (2018 £4,835,000)
Share-based payment hability

The Scheme requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of these share-based payments to the employee at the
date of exercise The liablility 1s re-valued at each reporting date and settlement date with any changes to fair value
being recognised Iin profit and loss The Group has recorded liabiities in respect of unvested grants of £14,306,000
(2018 £9,471,000)

26. Pensicn schemes

The Group operates three pension schemes on behalf of its employees The Global Radig Group Personal Pension
Plan (“GRGPPP") Is a defined contribution.scheme

All current employees are eligible to join the GRGPPP, which new employees are enrolled in automatically when
they begin employment with the Group At 31 March 2019, 1,376 (2018 1,330) employees were active members
of this scheme The Group makes age-related employer contributions to the scheme

The Capital Radie plc Pension and Assurance Scheme ("CRPPAS") and the Midiands Radio Group Pension
Scherme ("MRGPS") are contributory defined benefit schemes Both defined benefit schemes were closed to new
employees from 31 March 1995 At 31 March 2019, the MRGPS had 5 (2018 5) active members and the CRPPAS
had 4 (2018 4) active members The trustees of each scheme are responsible for the governance of the pension
plan and the Group does not hold a direct interest 1n any of the scheme’s funds The Group operates within the
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schedule of contnibutions set out by the Trustees and 1s not subject to any minimum funding requiremnents  No other
entity is responsible for the governance of the plan beyond the board of trustees

At the year end, the plan llabilities of the Group's defined benefit schemes had a weighted average duration of 18.7
years

The pension cost charge for the year represents contnbutions payable by the Group to the schemes and amounted
to £5,025,000 (2018 £2,034,000)

Contributions amounting to £27,800 (2018: £87,000) were payable to the schemes at the end of the financial year
and are incluged in other creditors.

There were no plan amendments, curtailments or settiements during the year.

The actuat return on the two defined benefit pension schemes assets over the period from 1 Apnl 2018 to 31 March
2019 was a gain of £1,146,000 for MRGPS and £382,000 for CRPPAS (gain for the period from 1 Apnif 2017 to 31
March 2018 was £333,000 and £231,000 respectively) Each asset class has a quoted market price in an active
market, as defined in IFRS 13

The expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption 1s assessed by considertng the current level of returns
on risk-free investments (pnmarnly government bonds) and the expectations for the risk premium of each asset
class The expected return for each asset class I1s then weighted based on the asset allocation to develop the
expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the porifolio

The amounts recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position are as follows

31 March 2019 31 March

2018

£'000 £'000

Present value of funded obligations {42,960) (40,752)
Fair value of scheme assets 44,586 41,841
Surplus N scheme 1,626 1,089
Midlands 833 396
Capitat 793 693
Totat surplus 1,626 1,089

The amounts recogrised in the consolidated Income Statement are as foliows

31 March 2019 31 March

2018

£'000 £'000

Current service cost {203) (203)

Past service cost {262) -
interest on abligation (1,066) (1,148)
Expected return on scheme assets 1,124 865
Totai (407) (486)
Actual return on scheme assets 1,528 574
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
26. Pension schemes (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows

Opemng defined benefit obhgation
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Contributions by scheme participants
Actuanal losses / (gains)

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in the farr value of scheme assets were as follows

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Expected return on assets

Actuanal gains / (losses)
Contributions by employer
Contributions by scheme participants
Benefits paid

Expenses paid by scheme

Closing fair value of scheme assets

31 March 2019 31 March
2018

£'000 £'300
40,752 41,698
203 203
262 -
1,066 1,148
22 14
1,769 (407)
{1,114) (1,904)
42,960 40,752
31 March 2019 31 March
2018

£000 £'000
41,841 43.090
1,124 865
404 (291)
2,368 142
22 20
{1,114) (1,904)
(59) (81)
44,586 41 841

The total amount recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income In respect of actuanal gains on
assets I1s £404,000 (2018 loss of £291,000) and the amount recogrised for actuarial losses on liabilties 1s

£1,768,000 (2018 gain of £245,000)

The two schemes are fully funded by the Group and the scheme members who contribute a percentage of salary
The funding requirements are based on the pension fund’s actuanal measurement framework set out In the funding

pohcies of the plan

The Group expects to contribute £254,000 to 1ts defined benefit penston schemes in 2019 (2018 £144 000).

The major categones of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows

Equities

Bonds

Diversified growth funds
Gilts

Cash
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31 March 2019

17.61%
29.33%
43.77%
7.44%
1.85%

31 March
2018

22 00%
29 54%
44 65%
3 00%
0 80%
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
26. Pension schemes (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting dates were (expressed as weighted averages)

31'March 2019 31 March

2018

Discount rate 2.45% 2 65%
Future salary increases 3.45% 3.30%
Future pension increases 3.55% 3 48%
Inflation assumption 2.95% 2 80%

The current mertality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates

The assumed tfe expectations on retirement age 65 are

31 March 2019 31 March
2018
Number Number
Retiring today
Males 220 219
Females 239 239
Retiring in 20 years
Males 23.4 233
Femzles 25.5 254
Amounts far the current and previous year are as follows
31 March 2019 31 March 31 March 3t March 31 March
2018 2017 20186 2015
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'G00
Defined benefit obiigation (42,960) (40 752) {41 698) {35,867) (40 80B)
Scheme assets 44,588 41 841 43,090 233,381 44942
1,626 1089 1,392 3,524 4134
Experience adustments on schemse habilities {1,789) 407 {5 306) 1,604 (6 161)
Expenence adjustments on scheme assets 404 {614) 3021 {2.739) 3363

Under 1AS 19 both schemes show a surptus 0 accordance with 1AS 19, the Group has recognised an asset on the
Statement of Financial Position in relation to the surptus In the schemes because the Group has an unconditional
right to realise the surpius during the plan or when the pian i1s settled.

The Group is exposed to a number of nsks relating to the defined benefit schemes (the “schemes”) including
assumptions not being borne out in practice The most significant risks are as follows'

Asset volatility

There is a risk that a fall in asset values 1s not matched by corresponding reduction in the value placed on the
- schemes. The schemes hcild a proportion of growth assets, which are expected to outperform corporate or
government bond yields in the long term but gives exposure to volatility and rigk in the short term.

Change in bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme’s liabilities, although this will be
partially offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s corporate bond holdings.

infiation risk

The majerity of the scheme's liabilities are linked to inflation where higher inflation will lead to higher scheme
habilites Some of the scheme assets are either unaffected by inflation or locsely correlated with infiation (e g
growth assets), meaning that an mncrease in inflation will generaily increase scheme habilities

Life expectancy

An increase in life expectancy will lead to an increased value being placed on the scheme’'s habiliies Future
mortality rates cannot be predicted with certainty
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
26. Pension schemes (continued)

Actuanal assumpfion sensitivity

The discount rate 1s set by reference to market conditions at the reparting date, and can vary significantly between
periods The earnings increases are linked to inflation and so set by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date The mortality assumptions used are set by considering the experience of the scheme’'s members, and by
making an allowance for possible future improvements In longewity. Mortality assumptions are difficult to set
accurately, and forecasting rates of future mortality improvement is inevitably speculative

The discount rate, earmings increases and inflation rates are set by reference to market conditions at the reporting
date, and can vary significantly between penods

A decrease \n the discount rate by 0 1% will increase the scheme’s liabilites by £776,000 (2018 ncrease of
£739,000)

An increase in inflation and salary growth assumptions by 0 1% will increase the scheme’s llabilities by £269,000
(2018 increase of £277,000)

27. Note supporting Statement of Cash Flows

Significant non-cash transactions in the year in respect of financing activibes comprised unpaid interest which was
capttalised into borrowings of £37 4m (2018 £51 5m) and no loans (2018 £3 9m) were converted to share capital.

28. Subsequent events

The Group completed several disposals post-year end in relation to the music festivals diwisiocn in a number of
separate transactions, to different buyers

On 16 Apni 2019, the Competition and Markets Authority gave clearance with regards to the acquisition of the
Exterion group, which had previously been under a Phase | investigation, lifting the restrictions over operational
and legal control over the acgquired entities At the year end, the acquisition has been recorded as an investment
in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, but upon gaining control, the results have been consclidated
in the Group’s financial reporting and will be included in the financial statements to 31 March 2020

Post year-end, the Group commenced its restricting plans to network breakfast shows on its Capital and Heart
brands, as welt as the drivetime show on Smooth, bringing the capital's high-quality programming nationwide

There are no other subsequent events to report

29. Immediate and ultimate parent company

in the opinion of the Directors the Company’s immediate and ultimate controling company 1s Global Radic Group
Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey

The largest and smallest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by Global
Media & Entertainment Limited

30. Guarantees, financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Guaraniees

The Company will guarantee the debts and labihties of certain of its UK subsidianes at the reporting date in
accordance with section 479A of the Compamies Act 2006 The Company has assessed the probability of loss under
these guarantees as remote

Security

The assets of the Group are pledged to their bankers as secunity against loans by way of a floating charge over the
assets

VAT Group

The Company (s a member of a group for VAT for group purposes, resuiting in a joint and several hability for amounts
owing by other Group companies for unpaid VAT

Financral commitments

The Group has entered into agreements with transmission supply companies and digital muitiplex operators for the
transmission of its radiwo stations for periods up to 2028 at competitive prices and to ensure supply At the year end
the commitments to purchase space on transmitiers was £104 5m {2018 £123 2m)
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Appendix to the Group Financial Statements

The appendix to the Group Financial Statements does not form part of the audited Annual Report and Financial

Statements

Alternative Performance Measures

The Group measures s normal trading performance on a regular basis using a range of financial and non-financial
key performance indicators, the key being adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, interest,

depreciation, amortisation and non-recurring rtems)

A reconciiabon between the statutory measure ‘operating profit’ to the alternative measure 'EBITDA is shown below

Year ended 31

Year ended 31

March 2019 March 2018
Note £'000 £'000
Operating profit 42,342 83,096
Bepreciation of property, plant and equipment 11 11,543 4,445
Amortisation of intangibles 10 25,058 18412
Movement in fair value of put options (962} {9.083)
Other operating expenses 39,227 6,140
Adjusted EBITDA 117,208 104,010

Adjusted EBITDA 1s considered a key performance measure for the Group given that

a) ltis a proxy for cash flows and helps to assess and manage liquidity across the Group,

b} The measure is used in the Growth Share Scheme in tracking performance, and therefore has an impact

on Directors’ remuneration on vesting dates, and

¢} The measure 1$ used by the Group's lenders as part of the debt covenants, and as such reporting and

analysis 1s required monthly.

The key performance measures used by the Group have not changed from the prior year and management's
interpretation of other operating expenses remains consistent. Management continue to identify the following items

as non-operational or non-recurring in nature and are excluded in adjusted EBITDA

Depreciation and armortisation These do not represent cash costs and are removed from the measure

Movement in fair value of put options These relate to acquisition activity and are therefore non-recurring in
nature

Other operating expenses These include any charges or credits relating to non-recurnng items

including restructuring and integration costs, such as launch costs
ncluding rebranding, redundancy costs, vacant property costs as well

as costs of acqusition
A breakdown of non-recurring costs, or other operating expenses, 15 shown below

Year ended 31 March

Year ended 31

Non recurring costs 2018 March 2018
£'000 £:000

Group Exceptional costs 25,419 -
Festivals kxceptional costs 1,705 4,653
Radio" Exceptional costs 11,747 1,487
Qutdoor Exceptional costs 356 -
39,227 6,140

Significant non-recurring items within the radio operating segment include costs of acquisition, costs associated with
the CMA process and of the regional restructure  Non-recurring ttems allocated to ‘group items’ relate to the
impairment of the Festivals goodwill and brands during the year to 31 March 2019 Festivals non-recurring costs

include professional costs asseciated with acquisitons made in the year
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Company Balance Sheet
At 31 March 2019
Company number 06251684

Fixed assets
Investments

Current assets

Debtors

Cash

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Net liabilities

Equity
Share capstal
Retained deficit

Note

32

33

34

35

36

The Company's profit for the year was £38 2m (2018 loss of £4 Tm)

The notes on pages 71 to 79 form part of these financial statements

31 March 31 March
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
92,581 92,440
92,581 92,440
1,289,837 431,773
26 15
1,289,863 431,788
(71,229) {42,188)
1,218,634 473,976
1,311,215 482,040
(1,552,491) (761,476)
(241,276) (279,436)
171,889 171,889
(413,165) (451,325)
(241,276) (279,436)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 26 July 2019 and

were signed on Its behalf by

O‘ ’ rf

DD Singer
Director
26 July 2018
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year
At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2017
Loss for the year
Issued In the year
At 31 March 2018

Share capital Retained Total equity
(note 36) deficit
£000 £'000 £000
171,889 (451,325) (279,436)
- 38,160 38,160
171,889 (413,165) {241,276)
Share capital Retained Total equity
(note 36) deficit
£000 £'000 £'000
165,310 (447,184) (281,874)
- {4,141) (4,141)
6,579 - 6,579
171,889 (451,325) (279,436)

The notes on pages 71 to 79 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

31. Accounting policies for the Company financial statements
a) Reporting entity

GClobal Media & Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) 1s an incorporated company limited by shares and
domiciled in the United Kingdom  Its registered address is 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA

The Company’s pnincipal actvity was the operation of commercial radio statiens in the United Kingdom and the
sale of advertising across its network

The Company financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 26 July 2018

b) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements (“*FRS 100") and Finangial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101") and the Companies Act 2006

As permitted by Section 408(2) of the Companies Act 2006 information about the Company’'s employee numbers
and costs have not been presented

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companries Act 2008, the Company’s Profit and Loss Account and Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income and related notes have not been presented as the Company’s Group financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act 2006

c) Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are presented in pound sterling (£), which 1s the Company's functionai and
presentational currency All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated

d) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, and are in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

The accounting policies set cut below have been appiied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements

In preparing these financial statements the company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions conferred
by FRS 101. Therefore these financial statements do not include

« certain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS,

« certain disclosures regarding the company's capital,

« a Statement of Cash Flows,

« the effect of future accounting standards not vet adopted,

« the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel, and

* disclosure of related party transactions with other wholiy-owned members of the group headed by
Global Media & Entertainment Limited.

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101, further disclosure exemptions have been adopted because eguivalent
disclasures are included in the Group financial statements of Global Media & Entertanment Limited These
financial statements do not include certain disclosures in respect of

= Fmwancial Instruments (other than certain disclosures required as a resuit of recording financial
instruments at fair value),

» Fair value measurement (other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at fair value), and

» |mpairment of assets

e) Investments

Investments are included in the Balance Sheet at cost less amounts wntten-off, representing impairment in value,
which has been recorded at farr value Impairment charges are recorded If events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying vaiue may not be recoverable
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
31. Accounting policies for the Company financial statements (continued)

f) Going concern

At the date of these financig! statements, the Directors have carried out a detailed and comprehensive review of
the business and its future prospects In particular they have compared the forecast future performance of the
Company and anticipated cash flows with the avallable working capital facilities and covenants contained in the
banking arrangements that form part of the Company’s current financing structure and, in the light of current
economic conditions, have considered the ability of the Group to meet Its obligations as they fall due In the opinion
of the Directors, the Company are expected to be able to continue trading within the current arrangements and
consequently the financial statements are presented on a going concern basis

g) Accounting policies for the Company financial statements

The Company's accounting policies are the same as the Group’s accounting policies, as detailed in note 1 to the
Group financial statements, for the following.

Company FRS 101 accounting policy Group IFRS accounting policy Note
New accounting standards New accounting standards 1h
Cntical accounting estmates and judgments  Crnacal accounting estimates and judgments 11
Debtors Trade and other recevables 1q
Cash Cash 1r
Share capital Share captal 18
Creditors Trade and other payables 1t
Interest recelvable and similar income Finance income and expense 1A
Interest payable and similar expense Finance income and expense 1v
Financial instruments Financial instruments w
Current and deferred tax Current and geferred tax 1x
Revenue recognition Rewenue recognition 1bb
Fair value measurement Fair value measurement 1dd

31. Directors

information on the Company's Directors 1s prowided in note 6 {o the Group financial statements

32. Investments

investments in
subsidiary
companies
£000

At 1 Apnil 2018 92 440
Additinns 141
At 31 March 2019 92,681

72



Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

32. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, including subsidianes held by indirect hoiding companies, are

Name

Country

% ordinary share capital
ownership

Arrow Digital Limited

Atlantic Broadcasting Limited*
Audio HQ LLC

Beat FM Limited

Bell Bidco Limited™

Globat Outdoor Media Holdings Limited*
Bell Intermediate Limited*
Boardmasters Il Limited
Boardmasters Limited
Broadwick Holdings Limited
Broadwick Live Limited
Broadwick Venues Limited
Brownstock UK Limited

Buzz FM Limited

Cambndge and Newmarket FM Radio Limited

Capitai (CDWM) Limited

Capitat Gold Hampshire Lim:ted
Capital Geld Kent Limited

Capita! Gold Manchester Limited*
Capitai Gold Sussex Limited

Capital Interactive Limited

Capital Online Limited

Capital Radie {Lendeon) Limited

Capitai Radio Investments Limited*
Capitai Radio Limited

Capital Radio Restaurants Group Limited
Capital Radio Restaurants Limited
Capital Radio Trustee Limited

Capital Telewsion Limited

Capital Xtra Limited™

Castleforrm Limited

Central European Broadcasting Limited
Champion FM Limited

Cheerdale Limited

Chill Radio Limited*

Chiltern Radio Limited*

Choice FM London Limited

Choice FM North London Limited
Classic FMBY

Ctassic FM Limited™

Continental Angel Limtited

Core Digital Radio Lirnited

Cotswold Broadcasting Company Limited
Count of Ten Limited

DAXUS Inc
Deansgate 1001 Limited
Deltrack Limited™

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at the

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United States of Amenca

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Umited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdomn
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
Untted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Unsted Kingdom
Netherlands

Unsted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Unrted Kingdom
United Kingdam

Umited States of America

United Kingdom
Urnited Kingdom

reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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100
100
&5
100
100
100
100
100
876
5886
586
50
876
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
876

100
100
100
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

32. Investments (continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are

Y% ordinary share capital

Name Country N
awnership

Dewonalr Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Digital Audio Exchange Limited” United Kingdom 100
Digital News Network Limited United Kingdom 100
DQ Radio Services Limited* United Kingdom 100
East Anghian Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Ecast Ventures Limited Urnited Kingdom 100
Etectnc Etephant Limited Umted Kingdom 58.6
Eleven Limited - United Kingdom 100
EssexRadio Limited* Unned Kingdom 100
Expressway Limited United Kingdom 160
Falcon Quidoor (North) Limited” United Kingdom 100
First Oxfordshire Radio Company Limited” United Kingdom 100
FNG Limited United Kingdom 557
Galaxy Radio Birmingham Limited® United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radis Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radic Manchester Limited United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio North East Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Galaxy Radio Yorkshire Limited* Uruted Kingdom 100
GCap Media (CRUD) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (FPRL) Limued United Kingdom 100
GCap Media (The Jazz) Limited United Kingdom 100
GCap Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Gemini Radio Limited” United Kingdom 100
Giobat 05689587 Limited United Kingdom 87.6
Global Festivals Limited United Kingdom 876
Global Kit Limited United Kingdom 526
Giobal Live Limited™* Untted Kingdom 100
Global Media Group Services Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Media Ventures Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Music Telewision Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Global Outdoor Media Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Qutdoor Media Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio {AM} Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Acquisihons Limited™” United Kinggom 100
Global Radio Digital Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Hampshire Limited® United Kingdam 100
Glabal Radia Holdings Limited** United Kingdom 100
Global Radic Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Londaon Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Media Management Limited* Umited Kingdom 100
Glabal Radio Mdlands Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Northwest Limited* United Kingdom 100
Global Radio Publishing Limited* United Kingdom 100
Gilobal Radio Semaces Limited United Kingdom 100
Global Radio UK Limited United Kingdomn 100
GMRadio News (UK) Limited United Kingdomn 5%

GMSE GmbH Germany 100
GMAE Sarl France 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee ~ Entities’ debts and liabilites are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date 1n accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

** Direct holdings of Globa! Media & Entertainment Limited as at the date of signing

On 25 July, the Company acquired the remaining egurty on Global Radio Holdings Limited from Glabal Radio
Acquisibons Limited
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

32. Investments {continued)

The Company's subsidiaries, including subsidianes held by indirect holding companies, are

Name

Country

% ordinary share capital
ownership

GMG Radio Limited

Ground Control Productions Limited
GWR (Local Area) Limited

GWR (Trustee Company) Limited
GWR (West) Limited™

GWR East Holdings Limited*

GWR Group Limited

GWR Hungary (Investments) Limited
GWR International Investments Limited
GWR International Limited

GWR New Zealand Licences Limited
GWR New Zealand Limited

GWR Radio {South East) Limited™
GWR Radio Limited

Hariow FM Limited

Healthbuild Limited

Hearnt 106 FM Limited

Heart Radio Limited

Heart TV Limited

Hereward Radio Limited

Hit 40 UK Limited

Hopstar Limited*

Hydra Events Limited

Independent Radio News Limited
Industriai Curation Limited

Investors in Radio Limited

Invicta Concerts and Promotions Limited
Jams of London Limited

Juice Holdco Limited™

Lakeside Creatives Limited
Lancashire Broadcastng Company Limited®
Lantern Radio Limited

LBC 1152 Limited

LBC Radio Limited*

DAX Digital Audio Exchange Inc
Leicester Sound Limtted*

Lite Spaces Limited*

Livetime Limited

Lock 'n' Load Events Limited
Marcher Radio Group Limited™

Maxx Qutdoor Limited™

Mid Anglia Radio Limited*

Mowving Music Limited

Mwah Mwah Limited

My Kinda Bath Limited

My Kinda Shacks Limited

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
New Zeatand
New Zealand
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdaom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uniteg Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Canrada
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

100
598
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
55
32
100
100
100
100
578
100
98
100
100
100
100
100
100
657
100
100
100
657
100
100
100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities' debts and lrabilities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date in accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
32. Investments (continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are

% ordinary share capital

Name Country )
ownership

My Kinda Square Limited United Kingdom 100
Neal Street Blues Limited United Kingdom 100
Ocean FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Orchard FM Limited” United Kingdom 100
QOrchard Media Limited United Kingdam 100
Qutdoor Plus Limited* United Kingdom 100
Oval (709) Limited United Kingdom 100
Piymouth Sound Limited” United Kingdom 100
Power FM Limited United Kingdom 100
Prestfold Limited United Kingdem 100
Primesight Airport Adwvertising Limited United Kingdom 100
Primesight Airports Limited United Kingdom 100
Primesight Biliboards Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Primesight Commurnications Lumited United Kingdom 100
Primesight Intermediate Holdco Limited* United Kingdom 100
Primesight Limited United Kingdom 100
Printworks Entertainment Limited United Kingdom 29

Prock Licence (NTLRSL) Limited United Kingdom 100
Project lconic Bidco Limited® Umited Kingdom 100
Project lconic Holdings Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Project lconic Midco Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Pure Butter Limited United Kingdom 51

Radio Broadland Limited* Umted Kingdom 100
Radio Inucta Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Radio Mercury Limiteg* United Kingdom 100
Radio Orwell Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio South Limited United Kingdom 100
Radio Trent Limited* United Kingdom 100
Ram FMLULimited United Kingdom 100
Real and Smooth Lirmited” United Kingdom 100
Real Radio (North East) Lumited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radic (North West) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radio (Scotland) Limited* United Kingdom 100
Real Radro Limited* United Kingdom 100
Rewind Festival Limited United Kingdom 87.6
Rivera Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Rock Radie Limited United Kinrgdom 100
Saxon Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
SBH Events Limited United Kingdom 5886
Scott Place 1002 Limited Umited Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1003 Limited United Kingdom 100
Scott Place 1004 Limited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Digital Radig Limited United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio Investments Limited” United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radic Lendon Limited” Unied Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio Scotland Limited* United Kingdom 100
Smooth Radio West Midlands Limited” United Kingdom 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabilities are guaranteed by the Company at the

reporting date i accordance with section 479A of the Comparies Act 2006
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
32. Investments (continued)

The Company’s subsidianes, including subsidiaries held by indirect holding companies, are

5% ordin .
Name Country % ordinary share capitat

ownership

South Hams Radio Limited United Kingdom 635
Southern Radio Group Limited* United Kingdom 100
Southern Radic Limited* United Kingdom 100
Storm (GWR) Limited United Kingdom 100
Storm Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Suffolk Group Radio Limited™ United Kingdom 100
Tainside Limited* United Kingdom 100
Thames Valley Broadcasting Group Limited United Kingdom 160
Thames Valley Broadcasting Lirmited” United Kingdom 100
Thamesquote Limited* United Kingdom 100
The Digital Radio Group {Investments) Limted™ Urited Kingdom 100
The Digital Radic Group Limited* United Kingdem 4100
The Hideout Festival LLP United Kingdem 70

The Milton Keynes Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Northamptonshire Broadcasting Company Limited United Kingdom 100
The Storm (Digital Radio} Limited United Kingdom 100
This 1s Giobal Limited United Kingdom 100
Truck Festivals UK Limited United Kingdom 876
TS Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100
Two Counties Radio Linmited™ United Kingdom 100
Vibe FM Limited tUnited Kingdom 100
Victorious Festivals Limited United Kingdom 574
Wasxarch Limited United Kingdom 708
We the Unicorns Limited* United Kingdom 100
Welovelocal com Limited* United Kingdom 100
West Country Broadcasting Limited United Kingdom 100
Westward Radio Limited United Kingdom 100
Westward Television Limited United Kingdom 100
Wiltshire Radio Limited* United Kingdom 100
Wirral FM Lim ited Urited Kingdom 100
Xfm Limited” United Kingdom 100
Xfm Manchester Limited™ Unrted Kingdom 100
Y Not Festivals UK Limited United Kingdom 100
Pop buzz Limited™ United Kingdom 100

* Exemption from Audit by Parent Guarantee — Entities’ debts and liabdities are guaranteed by the Company at the
reporting date In accordance with section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

The Company's subsidianes all have a year end of 31 March, with the exception of Lock’'N'Load Limited and
Waxarch Limited, which have a year end of 30 September and Audio HQ LLC which has a year end of 31
December

On 18 April 2018 Global Festivals Limited was renamed Superstruct UK Festivals Limited On 25 April 2018 Angels
in Radio Limited was renamed Globai Outdoor Meda Limited On 26 March 2019 Amber Radio was renamed
Global Media Group Services Limited On 31 December 2618 Vision Nine Entertainment Holdings Limited was
renamed Boardmasters Il Limited On 1C June 2019 Bell Holdco Limited was renamed Global Outdoor Media
Haldings Limited

The Company’s subsidianes registered address I1s 30 Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LA with the exception of
the followtng entites
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

32. Investments (continued)

Company

Registered Address

Audio HQLLC

Beil Bideo Limited

Bell Hotdco Limited

Bell Intermed:ate Limited
Classic FM BV
Continental Angel Limited

DAX US inc

Deltrack Limited

Falcon Qutdoor (North) Limited

GM Radio News (UK) Limited

GMEE GmbH

GMAE 3arl

GWR New Zealand Licences Limited

GWR New Zeatand Limited
Independent Radio News Limited
InLink Limited

Leanstream Inc

Lite Spaces Limited

Maxx Qutdoor Limited

Outdoor Pius Limited

Prestfold Limnted

Primesight Airport Advertising Limited
Primesight Airports Limited
Primesight Biliboards Limited
Primesight Commumcatons Limrited

Primesight Intermediate Hoildco Limited
Primesight Limited

Project iconic 8idco Limited

Project lconic Haldings Limited

Mroject lconic Midco Limited

Real Radio (Scotiand) Limited

Rock Radio Limited

Smooth Radio Scotland Limited

33. Debtors

Laans to subsidianies
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Deferred tax asset

138 Millard Avenue, New York 10708

22 Percy Street, London, Urnited Kingdom, W1T 2BU
22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom, W1T 2BU
22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom, W1 T 28U
Naarderpoort2 1411MA Naarden, The Netherlands

20-22 Great Titichfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W 8BE
874 Walker Road, Suice C, City of Dover, County of Kent, Detaware
1990430

20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdom W1W 8BE
22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom, W1T 2BU

Academic House, 24-28 Oval Road. London, NW1 7DJ

cfo Taylor Wessing, 1 Sartorplaing, 880331 Muruch

4 rue Marnvaux, 75002, Pans

10 Brandon Street. Wellington, 6011, New Zealand

10 Brandon Street, Weilington, 6011, New Zealand

Academic House, 24-28 Oval Road, Landan, NW1 7D

22 Percy Street London, United Kingdom. W1T 2BU

2800 Park Place, 666 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC VBC 227
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W 8BE
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, Uriied Kingdorn, W1W 88E
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1'W 8BE
20-22 Great Titchfield Street, London. United Kingdom, W1wW 8BE
22 Percy Street, London, Unrted Kingdom, W1T 2BU

22 Percy Street. London, United Kingdom, W1T 28U

22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdorn, W1T 2BU

22 Percy Street, London, United Kingdom, W1T 2BU

22 Percy Street, London, Urnited Kingdom, WiT 2BU

22 Percy Street. London, United Kingdom, W1T 2BU

20-22 Great Tiichfield Street, London, United Kingdom, W1W 8BE
89 New Bond Street, London, England, W1S 1DA

20-22 Great Titchfield Gtreat, Londan, United Kingdom, W1w 0DC
1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1RW

1 West Regent Street, Glasgow. G2 1RW

1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1RW

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
367,313 367,313
922,524 62,380
- 2,080
1,289,837 431,773
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Global Media & Entertainment Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
33. Debtors (continued)

The Directors have considered the value In use of the Investment and have concluded that an impairment in the
investment value 1s not applicable

The intra-group loans are repayable on demand Loans within the Radio operating segment incur annual interest
of 6% and loans between Radie and Qutdoor segments incur annual interest of 7%, plus a variabie element based
on 12-month GBP LIBOR

34. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts 35,000 23,303
Accrued interest 29,225 14,991
Amounts owed to group undertakings 4,529 3,894
Deferred tax labilities 2,475 -
71,229 42 188

35. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

£'000 £000

Bank loans 301,407 112,247
Other loans 1,251,084 649,229
1,562,491 761,476

36. Share capital
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£ £
Authorised, issued, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 171,889,147 171,889 147
171,889,147 171,889,147

37. Related party transactions

As disclosed in note 23 and in accerdance with the exemptions in FRS 101 the Company 1s not required to disclose
related party transactions with key management personnel or between members of the Group The Company has
not completed any refated party transactions with any other entites or parties

38. Immediate and ultimate parent company

In the opinion of the Directors the Company's immaediate and ultmate controlling company 1s Global Radio Group
Limited, a company incorporated m Jersey

The largest and smallest group In which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by Global
Mecia & Entertainment Limited
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